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NOTICE 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31st Annual General Meeting of Ashish Polyplast 
Limited will be held on Saturday, the 27th September, 2025, at 11 A.M. through Video 
Conferencing (VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following 
Businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together with report of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

2) To appoint Director in place of Mr. Ashish Panchal (DIN 00598209), Director who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company 
(including its Committee thereof), be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution.” 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

3) To regularize the appointment of Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 
10797040) as Director of the Company and for this purpose to consider and if 
thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal 
Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) who was appointed as an Additional Director on 
October 3, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who holds 
office up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and in 
respect of whom a notice has been received from the member in writing, under 
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of 
director be and is hereby appointed as the Director of the Company.”  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director of the company be and be 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required for the 
above resolution.” 
 

4) Appointment of Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) as an 
Independent Director of the Company. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 



following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:  
 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of sections 149, 152 and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), including the Rules 
made thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 17(1C) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the 
‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for 
the time being in force), Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) who 
was appointed by the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as an Additional Director under section 
161(1) of the Act and Articles of Association of the Company, and in respect of 
whom a notice in writing by the member of the Company pursuant to section 160 
of the Act has been received in the prescribed manner, be and is hereby appointed 
as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, 
effective from October 3, 2024 up to October 3, 2029.   
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company or 
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby individually authorized to 
file necessary forms with the office of Registrar of Companies and to do all such 
acts, deeds and things as may be required in order to give effect to the above 
resolution 

5) Appointment of M/s. Kamlesh M. Shah & Co., Firm of Company Secretaries as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years and to fix 
their remuneration: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modifications or reenactment thereof 
for the time being in force and pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time 
to time, and based on the recommendations of the Board of Directors, the consent of 
the Members be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of M/s. Kamlesh M. 
Shah & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries Ahmedabad having their ICSI 
Membership Number A-8356 and holding a Certificate of Practice Number: 2072, a 
Peer reviewed Firm having Registration Number: 6438/2025, as the Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of five consecutive financial 
years commencing from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, to conduct the secretarial audit 
of the Company on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the 
Board of Directors of the Company and the Secretarial Auditors from time to time; 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including 
its Committee thereof), or the Company Secretary be and are hereby authorized to 



finalize the terms and conditions of the appointment, including the remuneration, and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be necessary, expedient, or 
incidental to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

           Ahmedabad                                                                 By Order of the Board  
          7th August, 2025                                   For, Ashish Polyplast Limited                              
 
 

                                        Ashish D. Panchal 
                                                                                              Chairman /Managing Director 
                                                                                              DIN: 00598209      

IMPORTANT   NOTES: 

 
1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular 
no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI 
Circular”) and other applicable circulars and notifications issued (including any 
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and as 
amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM through 
Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physi-
cal presence of members at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circu-
lars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. 
 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 
members is not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are 
entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before 

and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the 
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM 
through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remunera-
tion Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 
allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first 
served basis. 

 



4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will 
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Com-
panies Act, 2013. 

 
5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended)  the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI 
and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regu-
lations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to 
its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this 
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities De-
pository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-
Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided 
by NSDL. 

 
6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated 

April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the web-
site of the Company at https://ashishpolyplast.com/. The Notice can also be ac-
cessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com re-
spectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL 
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time 
to time  

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOIN-
ING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, September 24, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. 
and ends on Friday, September 26, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear 
in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) 
i.e. September 19, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of share-
holders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date, being September 19, 2025. 
 
 

 

 



How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which 
are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual share-
holders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are al-
lowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Deposito-
ry Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below: 

Type of sharehold-
ers 

 Login Method 

Individual Share-
holders holding secu-
rities in demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. 
You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN 
No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received 
on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Deposi-
tory site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 
on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Benefi-
cial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDe-
AS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID 
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to 
see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Ac-
cess to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to 
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting web-
site of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting pe-
riod or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 



3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful au-
thentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download 
NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR 
code mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual Share-
holders holding secu-
rities in demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easi-
est facility, can login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are request-
ed to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my 
easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user 
will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies 
where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided 



by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able 
to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also 
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Pro-
viders, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 
website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, 
option to register is available at CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-
Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. 
from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on regis-
tered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting op-
tion where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly ac-
cess the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Share-
holders (holding se-
curities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository par-
ticipants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Deposi-
tory site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & vot-
ing during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800-21-09911  



 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual share-
holders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Phys-
ical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Num-
ber registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

and cast your vote. 
 



b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘ini-

tial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you 
from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf 
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial pass-
word’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” 

in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in 
active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining vir-
tual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 



4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” 
and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print op-
tion on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required 
to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Au-
thority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signato-
ry(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
kshahcs@yahoo.co.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional 
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their 
Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 
their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to re-
set the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to 
NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the deposito-
ries for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for 
the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of share-
holder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 



scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to ashishpolyplast@gmail.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID 
+ CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (ashishpolyplast@gmail.com). If 
you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are re-
quested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for 
e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding se-
curities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned doc-
uments. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided 
by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number 
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 
EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instruc-

tions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through 

VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through re-
mote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with 
the facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person 
mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM 
THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by follow-
ing the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After suc-
cessful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu 



against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 
Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Sharehold-
er/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that 
the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have for-
gotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-
Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 

through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss 
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use 
Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, 
email id, mobile number at ashishpolyplast@gmail.com. The same will be replied 
by the company suitably. 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Companies Act”) to the accompanying notice 

 

Item No. 3:  

Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040), Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company, being eligible to be appointed as a Director, is not debarred from holding 
the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI Order or any other such authority pursuant to 
circulars dated June 20, 2018 issued by BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited pertaining to Enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment of 
Directors by listed companies.  

Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) was appointed as Additional Director of 
the Company with effect from October 3, 2024 by the Board of Directors based on the 
recommendation of the nomination and remuneration committee under Section 161 of the 
Act and as per the Company’s Articles of Association.  

In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) 
holds office only up to the date of the forthcoming AGM but is eligible for appointment as 
a Director.  



Information as required under Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”) is given below  

The Board recommends the passing of the resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice, 
as an Ordinary resolution by the shareholders of the Company.  

None of the Directors of the Company or key managerial personnel or their relatives is, in 
any way, concerned or interested in the resolution.  

 

Item No.4:  

The Board with a view to strengthen the Board with professionals from diversified 
background and including finance background specifically, at its meeting held on October 
3, 2024, subject to approval of shareholders, based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’), appointed Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal 
Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) as an Independent Director with effect from October 3, 2024 
for a term of five consecutive years. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia, have identified experience in 
Financial Services, Expertise in Governance as the skills and capabilities required for the 
role. Considering the profile and experience of Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 
10797040), the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board is of the view 
that he meets the above skills and capabilities.  

Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) is not disqualified from being 
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’). He 
has confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of any 
order from SEBI or any such authority and has given his consent to act as Director of the 
Company.  

The Company has also received declaration from him that he meets the criteria of 
independence as prescribed, both, under section 149(6) of the Act and under the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 
Regulations’).  

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) fulfils the 
conditions for appointment as an Independent Director as specified in the Act and the 
Listing Regulations and is independent of the Management. 

In connection with the aforementioned, a notice in writing in the prescribed manner as 
required by section 160 of the Act and Rules made thereunder, has been received by the 
Company, regarding candidature of Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) for 
the office of the director. The copy of letter of appointment issued to him setting out the 
terms and conditions of his appointment is available electronically for inspection by the 
members. 

 In terms of regulation 25(2A) of the Listing Regulations, an ordinary resolution is required 
for appointment of an Independent Director. Further, as per regulation 17(1C) of the 
Listing Regulations, appointment of a person on the Board has to be approved by 14 
shareholders within a period of three months, and accordingly, approval of members is 
being sought.  



None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except Mr. Shrikant 
Kodarlal Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040) is directly or indirectly concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, except to the extent of his shareholding, if any, in the Company in 
the ordinary resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. 

 The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for 
approval by members. 

 

Item No.5:  

Appointment of M/s. Kamlesh M. Shah & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries 
Ahmedabad having their ICSI Membership Number A-8356 and holding a Certificate of 
Practice Number: 2072, a Peer reviewed Firm having Registration Number: 6438/2025 as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years and to fix their 
remuneration: ORDINARY RESOLUTION 

Pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, every listed company 
shall annex with its Board’s report made in terms of subsection (3) of section 134, a 
secretarial audit report, given by a company secretary in practice, in such form as may be 
prescribed. 

In addition to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated December 12, 
2024 mandates that every listed entity and its material unlisted subsidiaries incorporated in 
India shall undertake Secretarial Audit by a Secretarial Auditor who shall be a Peer 
Reviewed Company Secretary and shall annex a Secretarial Audit Report in such form as 
specified, with the annual report of the listed entity. Besides, such appointment shall be 
approved by the Members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. 

In compliance with the applicable laws and based on the recommendations of the Audit 
and Compliance Committee, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on May 21, 
2025, approved the appointment of M/s. Kamlesh M. Shah & Co., Practicing Company 
Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive years 
commencing from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, subject to the approval of the Members at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The appointment was recommended following a 
thorough evaluation of various proposals and key factors such as independence, industry 
experience, technical expertise and the quality of past audit reports. 

M/s. Kamlesh M. Shah & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries  is a reputed firm of 
practicing Company Secretaries registered with the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI) having extensive experience in corporate governance, compliance, and 
secretarial audits. In accordance with Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
firm holds a valid certificate issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The 
Firm has been providing professional services to listed companies and has a proven track 
record of maintaining high standards of governance and regulatory compliance. 

M/s. Kamlesh M. Shah & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries have given their consent to 
be appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company confirming that they do not incur any 
disqualification specified under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-



PoD/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 and that they shall not render any 
restricted services stated therein to the Company and its subsidiary companies to ensure 
independence and avoid conflict of interest. 

The Board believes that appointment of M/s. Kamlesh M. Shah & Co., Practicing 
Company Secretaries will provide an independent and expert evaluation of the Company’s 
corporate governance, regulatory compliance, and secretarial functions, thereby ensuring 
adherence to statutory requirements. 

The terms and conditions of M/S Kamlesh M. Shah & Co, appointment include a tenure of 
five consecutive years, commencing from the Financial Year 2025-26 to the financial year 
2029-30. The proposed fees for the Secretarial Audit for the Financial year 2025-2026 and 
for the rest of the term will be decided by Board of Directors in consultation with Mr. 
Kamlesh Shah. The proposed fee is determined based on the scope of work, team size, 
industry experience, and the time and expertise required to conduct the audit effectively  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 5 
for approval of the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 

None of the Director, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives are, in any 
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

 



Details of Directors seeking Appointment and Re-Appointment at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting  

 

Name of Director 
Mr. Ashish Panchal  (DIN: 

00598209) 

Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal 
Priydarshi (DIN: 10797040)

  

Date of Birth 02/06/1978 09/04/1991 

Date of Appointment 16/01/2001 03/10/2024 

Qualification Bachelor of Commerce Graduate 

Experience & Achievements 
 
 

Mr. Ashish Panchal has been 
associated with the company 

since 1996 and renders 
valuable services and provides 
guidance to the company. He 

has experience of general 
business administration. 

Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal 
Priydarshi is having experience 

as a marketing executive in 
mfg. of P.V.C. premium braided 

pipes. 

Directorship in other Indian 
Public Limited Companies 

None None 

Chairmanship / Membership of 
Committees in other Indian 

Public Limited Companies as 
on 31st March, 2024. 

None None 

Audit Committee None Member 

Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee  

Member Member 

Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 

None Member 

Number of shares held in the 
company as on 31st March 

2025 

18,59,523 Nil 

Ahmedabad                                                                            By Order of the Board  
7th August, 2025                                    For, Ashish Polyplast Limited                               
 
 

                                        Ashish D. Panchal 
                                                                                              Chairman /Managing Director 
                                                                                              DIN: 00598209                                                        
Registered Office: 
501, Fortune Business Hub, Near Satyamev Elysium,  
Near Science City, Sola, Ahmedabad GJ 380060 IN 



To,

Ahmedabad

1

2

3

Issued Share Capital  Rs.3,50,00,000 divided into 35,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each 
Paid Up Share Capital  Rs.3,39,75,000 divided into 33,97,500 shares of Rs. 10 each 

The Capital of the Company consist only of  equity shares.

COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE
The sales turnover of the company amounted to Rs. 1,601.44 Lakhs in the current year as compared to
Rs.1,594.13 Lakhs in the previous year which shows an increase of about 0.46%. The company has
earned net profit after tax of Rs.23.62 Lakhs during the year as against Rs.83.27 Lakhs in last year.
Profit Before Depreciation and tax and before exceptional items (PBDT) is Rs. 67.11 Lakhs during
the Current year as against Rs.125.92 Lakhs in last year. Your Directors are making constant efforts
for increasing the business of the company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year under review, the company has neither issued nor bought back shares. The Capital of
the company remains same as under.
Authorized Share Capital  Rs.3,75,00,000 divided into 37,50,000 shares of Rs. 10 each 

Dividend Distribution Tax                                               -                                              -   
Balance Profit/(Loss) Carried to                                       323.25                                    299.63 

Proposed Dividend                                               -                                              -   

Add: Balance of last year brought                                       299.63                                    216.36 
Balance Profit/(Loss) available for                                       323.25                                    299.63 

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particulars  2024-25  2023-24 
 Amount in Lakhs  Amount in Lakhs 

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
501, Fortune Business Hub, Near Satyamev Elysium, Near Science City, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380060

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Shareholders,
ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

We have great pleasure in presenting Thirty First Annual Report on the working of the company
together with the Annual Accounts for the year ended on 31st March 2025 and trust that the same will
meet your approval.

Sales & Other Income                                    1,614.66                                 1,669.71 
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation and                                         67.11                                    125.92 

Less: Exceptional Items                                               -                                              -   
Less: Depreciation                                         29.03                                      28.39 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax                                         38.08                                      97.54 
Less: Provision for taxation                                         13.31                                      13.38 
Profit/(Loss) after taxation                                         24.78                                      84.16 

                                        (1.16)
                                        23.62 

                                     (0.89)
                                     83.27 

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income

Less: Transfer to General Reserve                                               -                                              -   
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10 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

11 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

12

Director Independent and Non-Executive

Pankajkumar R Parmar* Director Independent and Non-Executive

As on March 31 2025 the company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture or associate.

The Company has in place a dynamic Risk management framework for a systematic approach to
control risks as the framewrok identifies, evaluates business risks and oppurtunities and seeks to create 
transparency and minimize adverse impact on the business The Risk Management Process is
appropriately handled by functional heads. As on Date, the comany envisage risks which could
threaten the existence of the company

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does not
fall within the purview of Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is not required to
formulate policy on corporate social responsibility.

DIRECTORS 

Rakesh N Panchal*

Category
Non-Independent and Executive

Non-Independent and Non-ExecutiveKantaben D. Panchal

The composition of Board of Directors is well balanced with a view to manage the affairs of the
Company efficiently and professionally.
Name of Director
Ashish D. Panchal

Independent and Non-Executive

The Independent Director of the Company furnished a declaration at the time of his appointment that
he qualifies the tests of his being independent as laid down under Clause 16(1)(b).The attendance
record of the Directors at the Board Meeting held during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025
and the last Annual General Meeting (AGM).

As per section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and clause 110 of Article of Association of the
Company Mrs. Kantaben Panchal is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Status
Managing Director

Director

Director

Shrikant K Priyadarshi* Director Independent and Non-Executive
Khusboo Fenil Kansara

MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF
THE BOARD REPORT
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE
During the year under review there have been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in
future.
SUBSIDIARIES OR JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATES

Your Directors do not recommend dividend for the year under review, in order to strengthen the long
term resources of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

LISTING AT STOCK EXCHANGE
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

DIVIDEND
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1

2
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5
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14

Sr No Date of the Meeting
1

15

Sr No Sr No

1 4
2 5
3 6

13th November, 2024

Date of the Board Meeting

The Board meets at least once in every quarter to review and approve the quarterly financial result on
compliance with Regulation 33 of SEBI Listing Obligations (Disclosures & Requirements)
Regulation, 2015.

Six Meetings of the Board were held during the year as mentioned below :

Rakeshbhai N. Panchal Independent and Non-Executive
Khusboo Fenil Kansara Independent and Non-Executive

1
1

Date of the Board Meeting

03rd October, 202425th April, 2024
18th July, 2024

11th February, 202531st July, 2024

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:-

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

*During the year under review, Mr. Rakeshbhai N. Panchal has been resigned as an Independent
Director of the Company w.e.f 31st July, 2024 due to completion of his tenure and in his place Mr.
Pankajkumar Ramanbhai Parmar has been appointed as an additional Independent director w.e.f.
31.07.2024 for a term of five years. Subsequently, his appointment was regularised by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 11th September, 2024. and Mr. Pankajkumar
Ramanbhai Parmar resigned as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 03rd
October, 2024. In his place, Mr. Shrikant K Priyadarshi was appointed as an Additional Independent
Director with effect from 03rd October, 2024, for a term of five years. 

As per the provisions of Sub section 3(c) of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act 2013 the Directors
hereby state and confirm that:

in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and that no material departures have been made from the same;
they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that 
period;they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
they have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.
they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

The Independent Directors have met once in the FY 2024-2025. The details of attendance are as 
under:

Name of the Members Designation Meetings Attended during 

they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company do have formation of board as per Companies Act, 2013 as well as per Listing
Agreement and SEBI Listing Obligations (Disclosures & Requirements) Regulations, 2015 all the
independent director attending the meetings of the Company and have given declaration to the
Company stating their independence pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. There
has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent director during 

25th April, 2024



Details of the Directors who attended Board meeting and General Meeting for the Year 2024-25

No. Of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance at 
Last AGM

6 11.09.2024
6 11.09.2024

3
-

6
11.09.2024

2
11.09.2024

3
-

16 AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Sr No Sr No
1 3
2 4

Category

Meetings 
Attended 

during the 
Year

Member 4
Chairman 4

Member 2

Member 1

Member 2

17 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Sr No Sr No
1 2

Category

Meetings 
Attended 

during the 
Year

Chairman 2
Member 2
Member 1
Member 1

Date of the Meeting
03rd October, 2024

Kantaben D. Panchal Non-Independent and Non-Executive
Shrikant K Priyadarshi Independent and Non-Executive

Mr. Rakeshbhai N. 
Panchal

Independent and Non-Executive

Mr. Pankajkumar R 
Parmar

Independent and Non-Executive

Mr. Pankajkumar R 
Parmar

Director

Mrs. Khusboo Fenil 
Kansara

Director

Name of the Director Designation

Ashish D. Panchal Managing Director
Kantaben D. Panchal

Name of the Members Designation

Ashish D. Panchal
Mrs. Khusboo Fenil 

Kansara

Mrs. Shrikant K 
Priyadarshi

Independent and Non-Executive

Independent and Non-Executive

Mr. Rakeshbhai N. 
Panchal

Director

Non-Independent and Executive

25th April, 2024

The Formation of the Audit Committee is as per the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. During
the Year under review the committee has meet four times as mention below.

Director

13th November, 2024
Date of the Meeting

31st July, 2024

Date of the Meeting

11th February, 2025

Mrs. Shrikant K 
Priyadarshi

Director

Rakesh N Panchal Independent and Non-Executive

18th July, 2024
Date of the Meeting

The Formation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as per the Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the Year under review the committee has meet one time as mentioned  

Name of the Members

Khusboo Fenil Kansara

Designation

Independent and Non-Executive



18 REMUNERATION POLICY :

19 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Sr No Sr No
1 3
2 4

Category

Meetings 
Attended 

during the 
Year

Member 4
Chairman 2
Member 4
Member 1

Chairman 2

20 DISCLOSURE OF DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:

21 BOARD EVALUATION

13th November, 2024
11th February, 2025

Khusboo Fenil Kansara Independent and Non-Executive

Shrikant K Priyadarshi* Independent and Non-Executive
Pankajkumar R Parmar Independent and Non-Executive

Not Applicable

Rakesh N Panchal*

Date of the Board Meeting
25th April, 2024

Kantaben D. Panchal

Designation

Non-Independent and Non-Executive

Name of the Director

31st July, 2024

Date of the Board Meeting

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen 
till the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares

With the advent of the new Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 , the listed entities are required to make disclosure in the Annual
Report about the details of share in Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account. The
Details of the same is mentioned below:

Number of shareholders who approached listed entity 
for transfer of shares from suspense account during the 
year

NIL

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the Suspense Account lying at the beginning 
of the year

NIL

Independent and Non-Executive

NIL

Numbers of shareholders to whom shares were 
transferred from suspense account during the year.

NIL

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the suspense account lying at the end of the 
year.

Persuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a
structured qustionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration of the various aspects of the board
functions, composition of the board amd its committees, culture, execution and performance of
specific duties, obligations and governance.
The perfomance evaluation of the independent Directors was completed. The perfomance evaluation
of the chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The
Board to Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Besides, the committee approves, if any, allotment, transfer & Transmission of shares, Debentures,
issue of any new certificates on split \ consolidation \ renewal etc.as may be referred to it. Details of
the Said Committee meeting are mentioned below:

The Company has adopted Remuneration policy in which the criteria for appointment of independent
director, executive and non-executive directors are mentioned along with the payment of remuneration
and sitting fees to the director. Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to nonexecutive directors
are provided under the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company which is hosted on the
website of the Company viz; www.ashishpolyplast.com.

To comply with the provisions of Companies Act, company has formed Stakeholders Relationship
Committee. The object of the committee to look into complaints if any and redress the same
expeditiously.
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During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans / given guarantees / made
investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT 2013.

M/s. M. R. Pandhi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Regn. No. 112360W)
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the annual general meeting held on
30.09.2022 for a term of five years from 1st April 2022 upto 31st March 2027.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR 
During the year under review, Mrs. Aayushi Parth shah (Formaly Aayushi Soni) has resigned from the
post of Company secretary and compliance officer of the company w.e.f 08th July, 2024 and Mrs.
Dipti Sharma has been appointed in her place as company secretary and compliance officer of the
company w.e.f. 18.07.2024.

CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company done during the year.

There was no employee drawing remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/ per month or Rs. 1,02,00,000/ per
year. The Board of Directors wishes to express its appreciation to all the employees of the company
for their outstanding contribution to the operation of the company during the year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The information required under section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
This is to certify that in order to comply with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, read with, Regulation 15 (2) (a) of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Paid up capital of the Company ASHISH
POLYPLAST LIMITED is not exceeding Rs. 10 Crores i.e. Rs. 3,39,75,000/- (Rupees Three Crore
Thirty Nine Lacs Seventy Five Thousand only) and the Net worth is less than Rs. 25 Crores i.e. Rs.
6,48,12,754/- (Rupees Six Crore Fourty Eight Lakhs Twelve Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Four
Only) as on the last day of the previous financial year i.e. 31st March, 2024. Therefore it is not
required to submit Report on Corporate Governance.

DIRECTOR'S REMUNERATION POLICY AND CRITERIA FOR MATTERS COVERED
UNDER SECTION 178 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 which determines Directors' remuneration policy and criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under Sub -
Section (3) of Section 178.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
The Board has appointed M/s. Kamlesh M Shah & Co., Practising Company Secretary to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the financial year under review. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial
Year ended 31st March, 2025 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure A to this Report.

DEPOSITS
The company has not invited or accepted any fixed deposit from public during the year under review
and as such, no amount on account of Principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as
on the date of the Balance Sheet.

AUDITORS
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Mr.Shrikant Kodarlal Priyadarshi was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of
Non-Promoter Non-Executive as an Independent Director on 03rd October, 2024. His regular
appointment was required to be confirmed at the next general meeting or within a time period
of three months from the date of appointment,whichever is earlier from the date of his
appointment as per SEBI (LODR) 2015. However the same is still pending and will be
confirmed at ensuing AGM. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO :-

There were no related party transactions entered into by the company during the financial year, which
attracted the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no details to be
disclosed pursuant to section 134 (3) (h) of the Act read with rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 in Form AOC - 2 in that regard. 

All the related party transactions are duly approved by audit committee as required under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the related party policy of the company.

Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo are required to be given pursuant to section 134 for the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding in the statement annexed as Annexure B hereto forming
a part of this Report.

A copy of the related party policy for dealing with related party transactions is availaible on the
website of the company. Transactions with the related party are disclosed in detail in note no.36 and
annexed to the financial statements for the year.

The detailed analysis of the operating performance of the Company for the year, the state of affairs
and the key changes in the operating environment have been included in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Section which forms a part of the Annual Report. (Annexure C)

MANAGEMENT  DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 

In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return of the company is available on the website of the
company at the link : http://www.ashishpolyplast.com/

REPORTS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

DEPOSITORIES
The company is registered with both National Securities Depositories Ltd (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). The shareholders can take advantage of holding their scripts
in dematerialized mode.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
The Company has internal control system commensurate to the size of its operations. Your company's
Statutory Auditors have confirmed the adequacy of internal control system.

The Auditor's Report and Secretarial Auditors' Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations
or adverse remarks except mentioned below and is annexed to this report as “Annexure‐A”.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Directors Clarification on the above point as an addendum to the Director’s Report:

The Company has appointed Mr. Shrikant Kodarlal Priyadarshi (DIN: 10797040) as Additional 
Director on 03rd October, 2024 as Non-Executive Independent Director. His appointment will 
regularized by the Company in the 31st Annual General Meeting. 
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i

ii

Sr no Name Designation Remuneration 
paid in

 F.Y 2024-25 
Rs in Lakhs

Remuneration 
paid in

 F.Y 2023-24 
Rs in Lakhs

Increase in 
remuneration 
from previous 

years Rs in 
Lakhs

Ratio / 
Times per 
median of 

the 
employee 

remuneratio
1 Ashish D Panchal Managing 

Director
             21.19                16.20                  4.99 8.99            

2 Knataben Panchal Director                    -                        -                        -   -              

3 Shrikant K
Priydarshi

Independent 
Director

                   -                        -                        -   -              

4 Khusboo Fenil
Kansara

Independent 
Director

                   -                        -                        -   -              

5 Kalpesh N
Kansara

CFO                4.21                  4.01                  0.20 1.79            

6 Aayushi Parth
Shah

Company 
Secretary 
(upto 
08.07.2024)

               0.90                  2.93                (2.03) 0.38            

7 Dipti Sharma Company 
Secretary 
(upto 
18.07.2024)

               1.80                      -                    1.80 0.76            

iii

iv

1.Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014:The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of the Employees
of the Company for the FY 2024-25 and

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year

Median Remuneration of Employees (MRE) of the Company is Rs. 2.36 Lakhs for the
Financial Year2024-25.

There was 15 permanent employee on the rolls of the Company during the year ended 31st 

March, 2025.

REMUNERATION RATIO OF THE DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(KMP) / EMPLOYEES

WEBSITE:
As per the Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable, the Company
has maintained a functional website www.ashishpolyplast.com which has all the details i.e. details of
its business, financial information, shareholding pattern, contact information of the designated
officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances, details of
agreements entered into with the media companies and/or their associates, etc.The contents of the said
website are updated on regular basis.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER
The Company has established a “Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy” for Directors and
employees to report the genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions
of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The board
has approved a policy for vigil mechanism which has been hosted on the website of the Company. The
weblink for the same is www.ashishpolyplast.com.
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Ashish D. Panchal
Chairman & Managing Director

Din : 00598209
Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025

Director
Din : 00598256

On behalf of the Board

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Kantaben D. Panchal

The Board takes the opportunity to thank for the continued support received from Banks and
government authorities. Your Directors also acknowledge the support received by the Company from
its suppliers of goods & services, agents, dealers, shareholders and other agencies associated with the
Company.

POLICY ON PROTECTION OF WOMEN AGAINST SEXUAL HARRASEMENT AT WORK 
The Company is commited to creating a healthy & conductive working environment that enables
women to work without fear of prejudice, gender bias and sexual harrasement and/or any such
orientation in implicit or explicit form. The Company considers sexual harassment as gross
misconduct. Pursuant to the provisions of " The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (
Prevention , Prohibition and Redressal ) Act , 2013 " and the rules made thereunder, the company has
adopted a " Policy on Protection of Women against Sexual Harrasement at Work Place ". Through this
policy the Company Seeks to provide protection to its women employees against sexual harassement
at work place and thereby provide mechanism for redressal of complaints relating to months
connected therewith or incidental thereto.

Statements in the Director’s Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the
Company’s objectives, expectations or predictions, may be forward looking within the meaning of
applicable Securities Laws and Regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed
in this statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations include global and
domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices, in capacity additions, availability of
critical materials and their cost, change in Government’s Policies and tax laws, economic development
of the Company and other factors which are material to the business operation of the Company.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not
directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year - N.A.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the
Company.

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last Financial Year was 7%. Average percentage increase made in the salary
of the managerial personnel in the last Financial Year-N.A

Affirmed that the remuneration as per the Nomination Policy of the Company

There is no variable component in remuneration of Directors of the Company.

For Ashish Polyplast Limited



Annexure - A

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: (NOT APPLICABLE FOR
THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW)
(v) The following Regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992(‘SEBI Act’) :-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations,
2011; The Annual Disclosure of shareholding by Promoters/ Directors as per Regulation 31(4) is not made for the
year under review. However, the company may make such disclosure through System Driven Disclosure to be
maintained by Depositories with whom the company is to sign agreements.  
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015; The Company
has installed a Structural Digital Database Software in a computer system with password protection for access and
making entries therein. The company has made all entries therein for all the UPSI Sharing with Directors,
Promoters, KMP, all other professional persons and persons who are deemed to have access to such UPSI from
time to time during the year under. The Company has filed Compliance Certificate on a quarterly basis to the stock
exchange in time.   

CIN: L17110GJ1994PLC021391

Based on my/our verification of the records of ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I/We hereby
report that in my/our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper Board-
processes and compliances mechanism in place to the extent , in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I/We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and record maintained by ASHISH 
POLYPLAST LIMITED (CIN: L17110GJ1994PLC021391) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made there under subject to our observations in this report. 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act,1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

I/we have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED.(Hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.



I/We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 2021; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW)
(E )The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding maintenance of Shareholder data, Register of Members, register of Transfer/Transmission etc under
the Companies Act and dealing with client investors, shareholders including for investors complaint redressal work
as per SEBI Norms. The Company has appointed M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited a SEBI Registered RTA
for the purpose and such appointment agreement is in force during the year. The Company has filed an Annual
Declaration under Regulation 7(3) of SEBI (LODR) 2015 with the stock exchange for the year under review.   
(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; NOT 
APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (NOT APPLICABLE
FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW)

(vi) As stated in the Annexure – A – all the laws, rules, regulations are applicable specifically to the company. 

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 are
complied with during the year under review subject to the condition that during the year the company has paid a
financial Penalty of Rs. 4,53,002/- (Inclusive of GST) to BSE Ltd as per SEBI (SOP) Circular for late submission
of various listing requirement documents as per SEBI (LODR). 

As the Company has already made applications for waiver of penalty imposed under various clauses along
with proof of compliance If any on 10/05/2023, 14/06/2023 and 01/07/2023 which are still not considered by
the Committee of the BSE Ltd. The BSE Limited has allowed the refund of Penalty of Rs.2,05,202/-
(Inclusive of GST Rs.31,302/-) vide its invoice dated 30th January,2025. Balance amount was adjusted
towards the penalty payment and the promoters accounts were defrizzed by BSE Limited during the year.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
or any amendments thereto (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW).

(vii) No Other Observations regarding other major corporate events occurred during the year and various
compliances made by the Company with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, and Listing Agreements etc. 



Place: Ahmedabad                                                                            (Kamlesh M. Shah)
Date: May 09, 2025                                                                              PROPRIETOR
UDIN:-  A008356G000304839                                                            ACS: 8356, COP: 2072

                                                                                     FOR KAMLESH M. SHAH & CO.,
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

I Further report that I Further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

However, Mr.Shrikant Kodarlal Priyadarshi was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of
Non-Promoter Non-Executive as an Independent Director on 03rd October, 2024. His regular appointment
was required to be confirmed at the next general meeting or within a time period of three months from the
date of appointment,whichever is earlier from the date of his appointment as per SEBI (LODR) 2015.
However the same is still pending and will be confirmed at ensuing AGM. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance or with consent of directors at a shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting as per the request of
particular directors only for their meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decision is carried through by
oral voting at the meetings only. There does not exist the system of e voting or paper voting on any item of the
agenda for board meeting. In view of this we are unable to comment upon the existence of system of obtaining/
seeking the dissenting members’ views. However, the company has the system of sending Draft minutes to every
director for their information, clarification, comments rectification. Such Finally written minutes are read out at
next meeting of the board of directors. 

I further report that during the audit period, the company has not incurred any specific event / action that can have
a bearing on the company’s compliance responsibilities in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guideline, standards, etc.

(ii)The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the provisions
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 subject to our observations
under para V (i) above. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I/We further report that
The board of directors of the company is not duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors, non -
executives directors, independent directors, and woman director. The changes in the composition of the board of
directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
act and with intimation to stock exchanges. 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India though it is applicable w.e.f July
01, 2015 and or any amendment, substation, if any, are adopted by the Company and are complied with. 



Place: Ahmedabad                                                                             (Kamlesh M. Shah)
Date: May 09, 2025                                                                           PROPRIETOR
UDIN:- A008356G000304839                                                         ACS: 8356, COP: 2072

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

As the company is engaged in the manufacturing activities, the environmental laws as are applicable to it and it has
properly complied with such provisions to the extent applicable

Taxation Laws
We are informed by the management that the company follows all the provisions of the taxation and Income Tax
Act, 1961 and filing the returns at proper time with Income tax department and all other necessary departments. We
are not expert under this act and have relied upon observations of the Statutory Auditors in this regard. 

                                                                                     FOR KAMLESH M. SHAH & CO.,

Labour Laws
1. All the premises and establishments have been registered with the appropriate authorities.
2. The Company has not employed any child labour Child & Adolescent Labour (Prohibition & Regulation) Act,
1986 in any of its establishments.

3. Provisions with relate to compliances of PF/ESI/Gratuity Act are applicable to Company and Complied with.
The Company has not made provision for Payment of Gratuity on accrual basis.

Environmental Laws

4.The Company has yet not filed an annual return under provisions of POSH with District Collector for the year
under review. 

Other Industry Specific Act/ Laws/ Rules/ Regulations: 
There are no other industry specific Act, laws, rules, regulations, notifications etc are applicable to the company to
the industry in which it operates or has the business activities, as informed to us by the management. 

ANNEXURE-A

Securities Laws
1.All Price Sensitive Information were informed to the stock exchanges from time to time as per Regulation 30 of
the SEBI (LODR) 2015

2.All investors complain directly received by the RTA and Company is recorded on the same date of receipts and
all are resolved within reasonable time. The Company files Status of Investors Complaints as per Regulation 13 on
quarterly basis with Stock Exchange regularly. 
3.Other SEBI (SAST) Regulations, SEBI (PIT) Regulations, SEBI (LODR) Regulations and other regulations as
are applicable are complied with subject to our observation in this report. 
However, Mr.Shrikant Kodarlal Priyadarshi was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of
Non-Promoter Non-Executive as an Independent Director on 03rd October, 2024. His regular appointment
was required to be confirmed at the next general meeting or within a time period of three months from the
date of appointment,whichever is earlier from the date of his appointment as per SEBI (LODR) 2015.
However the same is still pending and will be confirmed at ensuing AGM. 



Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                 (Kamlesh M. Shah)
Date: May 09, 2025                                                                             PROPRIETOR
UDIN:- A008356G000304839                                                            ACS: 8356, COP: 2072

5.The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6.The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

                                                                                     FOR KAMLESH M. SHAH & CO.,
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

To,
The Members,
ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
CIN: L17110GJ1994PLC021391

2.We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3.We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company. 

4.Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc. 

ANNEXURE-B

Our report of even date for the financial year ended 31/03/2025 is to be read along with this letter: 

1.Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

501, Fortune Business Hub, Near Shell Petrol Pump,
Science City, Sola, Ahmedabad: 380 060.

7.We have relied on Management Representation Letter provided by the Company before issuing this Report to the
Company.



ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED F.Y 2024-25

1 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

2
(i)

(ii)

3 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING/OUTGO
Amount in Rs.

Current Year Previous Year
a Total foreign exchange earned  NIL NIL
b Total foreign exchange outgo  NIL NIL

For Ashish Polyplast Limited

Ashish D. Panchal Kantaben D Panchal
Chairman & Managing Director Director

Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025 Din : 00598209 Din : 00598256

Particulars

By Order of the Board

(iii) details of imported technology 
(imported during the last three 
years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year)

No imported technology

(a) the details of technology 
imported

N.A

(b) year of import
(c) whether the technology has 
been fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, arrears 
where absorption has not taken 
place, and the reasons thereof

the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipments Nil

   TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
The efforts made towards 
technology absorption

The Company always keeps itself updated with all the latest
technological innovation by way of constant communications
with consulting experts. Efforts are being made to make
maximum use of available infrastructure, at the same time
innovating new techniques to bring efficiency and economy in
different areas.

The benefit derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, 
product development or import 
substitution 

ANNEXURE-B

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY , TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

the Steps taken or impact on 
conservation energy

The company has adopted several energy conservation
measures. Due care has been taken at the time of selection of
plant & machinery. Periodical testing is being done for each
unit of power supply to verify that the energy consumed is
minimized. 

the Steps taken by the company 
for utilizing alternate source of 
energy

Nil



ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

A

B

Market Composition and Segmentation

The industry's end-user segments are primarily driven by:

Raw Material Supply Chain Evolution

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:

India has been predominantly a Unplasticized Polyvinyl Chloride (UPVC) market, with this dominance
stemming from UPVC's superior rigidity, higher pressure tolerance compared to other plastics, and cost-
effectiveness. The organized players are expected to gain market share due to the benefits of branding and
operational scale, even as competitive intensity remains high across the sector.

- Irrigation sector - accounting for the largest chunk of demand, supported by various Central and State
schemes to increase irrigated area and improve water use efficiency
- water supply and plumbing applications
- Industrial applications including hose pipes and braided pipes
- Replacement demand from aging infrastructure

Significant investments are being made to reduce import dependence for PVC resin, the key raw material.
Large-scale domestic PVC manufacturing plants are being commissioned, which is expected to ease the
current heavy reliance on imports and provide better supply chain security.

F.Y 2024-25

Annexure -C

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS

INDIA’S PLASTIC PIPE INDUSTRY

The Indian plastic pipes industry has demonstrated remarkable resilience and growth potential, emerging as a
key infrastructure enabler in the country's development story. The industry witnessed robust performance with
revenues growing at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 9% between FY2020 and FY2024, and is
projected to cross the milestone of Rs. 500 billion in FY2025. 

India's per capita plastic pipe consumption remains significantly below the global average and substantially
lower than developed economies like the US, Europe, and China, indicating substantial headroom for growth.
The country's plastic demand has grown approximately 3x from 8.3 million tonnes per annum (MMTPA) in
FY2010 to 23 MMTPA in FY2023, while the population grew by only 1.1x over the same period,
demonstrating the sector's strong growth trajectory. 

The PVC pipes segment, which dominates the Indian market, is expected to witness sustained double-digit
growth of 10-12% year-on-year in fiscal 2025, following impressive growth rates of 15% and 24% in fiscals
2024 and 2023 respectively. The total market value is projected to reach USD 7.43 billion by 2030, rising at a
CAGR of 5.79% from USD 5.25 billion in 2024.



C

• Key Growth Opportunities

1 Infrastructure Development Push

2 Demographic Dividend

3 Agricultural Modernization:

4 Low Penetration Advantage:

D

1 Raw Material Price Volatility:

2 Import Dependence:

3 Policy and Regulatory Risks:

4 Market Cyclicality:

The imposition of anti-dumping duties on PVC imports from major producing countries in October 2024
could impact raw material costs and availability.

The industry experienced moderated growth in 9M FY2025 due to sluggish government capital expenditure
during the General Elections period, highlighting vulnerability to policy cycles.

INDUSTRY THREATS AND CHALLENGES

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

Government initiatives such as the Jal Jeevan Mission (extended until 2028 with enhanced outlay of Rs. 670
billion), increased allocation to PMAY-Urban by 54% to Rs. 233 billion for FY2026, and PM Awas Yojana
Urban 2.0 with central assistance of Rs. 2,200 billion over the next 5 years are creating substantial demand
drivers.

Rising middle class, increasing per capita incomes, rapid urbanization, and the shift toward nuclear families
are supporting the construction industry's expected CAGR of ~10% over FY2024-28.

Government focus on micro-irrigation schemes and water use efficiency is driving demand in the irrigation
segment, which represents the largest end-use application.

India's significantly lower per capita plastic consumption (13 kg/person/year) compared to developed
economies provides substantial room for market expansion.

The industry faces significant exposure to PVC price fluctuations, which directly impact margins. Sharp price
increases limit demand due to restricted pass-through capabilities, while rapid price declines lead to inventory
losses and dealer destocking, affecting volumes.

Heavy reliance on imported PVC resin exposes the industry to global supply chain disruptions, currency
fluctuations, and geopolitical risks.



E

1 Quality and Compliance Requirements

2 Environmental Regulations

3 Technology and Innovation Pressure

4 Working Capital Management

5 Regulatory Changes

F

1 Diversifying supplier base and developing long-term raw material contracts

2 Investing in backward integration for key raw materials
3

4 Strengthening brand positioning and distribution networks
5 Implementing robust quality management systems to meet BIS requirements
6 Developing sustainable and recyclable product lines to address environmental concerns

G

The Plastic Waste Management (Amendment) Rules 2024 introduce stricter Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR) requirements, mandating companies to achieve recycling targets increasing from 30% in
2024-25 to 80% by 2027-28 for rigid plastics.

Increasing demand for sustainable and recyclable products requires continuous investment in research and
development to meet evolving market expectations.

Volatile raw material prices create challenges in inventory management and working capital optimization.
Extended payment cycles in government and institutional segments pose cash flow management challenges.

Evolving environmental norms, quality standards, and trade policies could impact operational flexibility and
cost structures.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

The implementation of stringent BIS (Bureau of Indian Standards) certification requirements under the Poly
Vinyl Chloride (PVC) Homopolymers Quality Control Order 2024 necessitates continuous compliance with
evolving quality standards.

MITIGATION STRATEGIES

To address these risks, industry participants are focusing on:

Enhancing product portfolio toward value-added and specialized applications

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:
The Company has built adequate systems of internal controls towards achieving efficiency and effectiveness
in operation, optimum utilization of resources, and effective monitoring thereof as well as compliance with all
applicable laws. The internal control mechanism comprises of well-defined organization structure,
documented policy guidelines, pre-determined authority levels and processes commensurate with the level of
responsibility.
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I

J

K DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIO

Basis
As at 31st
March, 2025

As at 31st
March, 2024

% Variance

1 Debt-Equity Ratio
times               0.05                0.13 63.94%

2 Return on Equity
Ratio % 3.58% 13.75% 73.98%

3 Net Profit Ratio
% 1.47% 5.22% 71.77%

4 Return on Capital
Employed % 5.33% 14.02% 61.96%

5 Return on
Investment. % 4.72% 31.54% 85.02%

By Order of the Board
For Ashish Polyplast Limited

Ashish D. Panchal Kantaben D Panchal
Chairman & Managing Director Director

Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025 Din : 00598209 Din : 00598256

CAUTION STATEMENT:
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives,
estimates etc. may be “forward-looking statements” within the applicable laws and regulations. Actual results
may vary from those expressed or implied; several factors that may affect Company’s operations include
Dependency on telecommunication and information technology system, Government policy and several other
factors. The Company takes no responsibility for any consequences of the decisions made, based on such
statement and holds no obligation to update these in future

Decrease in outstanding borrowing
is resulted into an improvement in
the ratio.

The highlight of financial performance is discussed in the Directors’ Report. The Audit Committee also
reviews the financial performance of the Company from time to time.  

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT:
The Company’s ongoing objective is to create an inspirational work climate where talented employees engage
in creating sustained value for the stakeholders. The Company has developed an environment of harmonious
and cordial relations with its employees.

particular

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

Sr 
No.

Decrease in Earning has resulted in
deteriorate in the ratio.
Due to unfavourable equity market,
there is less return for the year.

Reasons
Standalone

Decrease in Net profit has resulted
in deteriorate in the ratio.

Decrease in Net profit has resulted
in deteriorate in the ratio.



To, 
Members,
ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED,
Ahmedabad-06, Gujarat

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment
1 Ashish D. Panchal 598209 16/01/2001
2 Kantaben Panchal 598256 07/04/1996
3 Shrikant Kodarlal Priyadarshi 10797040 03/10/2024

4 Khushbu Mahendrabhai Kansara 9719429 30/08/2022

    For, Kamlesh M. Shah & Co.,
  Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad      Kamlesh M. Shah 
Date: May 09, 2025 (Proprietor)
UDIN: A008356G000304245 (ACS: 8356, COP: 2072)

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.

Certificate of Non-disqualification of Directors
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED bearing CIN: L17110GJ1994PLC021391 and having its registered office at
501,FORTUNE BUSINESS HUB, NEAR SATYAMEV ELYSIUM, NEAR SCIENCE CITY, SOLA,
AHMEDABAD 380060 GUJARAT, INDIA (hereinafter referred to ‘the Company’), produced before us by the
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-
C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. In respect of the Qualification/ Disqualification of Directors as on 31st March 2025, we state as
under:  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Mr Shrikant Kodarlal Priyadarshi was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of Non-Promoter Non-
Executive as an Independent Director. His Regular appointment was required to be confirmed within 90 days from
the date of his appointment as per SEBI (LODR) 2015. However the same is still pending and will be confirmed at
the ensuing AGM.



To The Members,
ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for opinion

Key audit matters

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

C-1108, The First, Near Keshavbaug Party Plot, Beside ITC Narmada Hotel, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad-380015
Phones: (079) 40395890 • e-mail: mrpandhi@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ashish Polyplast Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of changes in equity, the Cashflow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting policies and
other explanatory information.( (hereinafter referred to as the  financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended (" Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and cash flows for the year ended  on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financial statements

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be
communticated in our report.

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Corporate Governace report and shareholder's information but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from
time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1

2
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account.

in our opinion, the afrosaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act read Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from
being appointed as a director in terms of  section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

in our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by law, so far as appears
from our examination of the books.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.



(g)

(h)

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(i)

(j)

For, M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.112360W

A.R.Devani
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date  : 21st May, 2025 Membership No.170644

UDIN : 25170644BMHGCW4151

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting softwares
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with in cases where the audit trail
feature was enabled or audit trail not preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or Entities, (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge no funds have been received
by the company from any person or entity, (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information
and  according to the explanations given to us :-

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to
its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and



(i) In respect of Fixed Assets
a. A

B

b.

c.

d.

e.

(ii) a.

b.

(iii) a

b

(iv)

(v)

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. However, during the year Company has made investments in the units of mutual
fund amounting to Rs. 88 Lakhs. The outstanding balance of investments in mutual fund as
on 31.03.2025 is Rs. 307.41 Lakhs.

In respect of the aforesaid investments made, the terms and conditions under which such
investments were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

c & 
d & 
e & 

f

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii) (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not
granted any loans or given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with such loan or made
any investment to the persons covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly provision of
clause 3 (iv) of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence
reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Five crore
during the year, from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of current
assets. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report 
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements of our
report of even date;
On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation
given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and location of the Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

In our opinion Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification during the year.
On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the
Company.
The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
or both during the year.

Based on our verification of the documents provided to us and according to the information
and explanations given by the Management, the Company does not have any proceedings
initiated or pending as at 31st March, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.
The physical verification of inventory has been verified by the management during the year.

The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the books records
were not material and have been properly dealt in the books of account.



(vi)

(vii)
a.

b.

(viii)

(ix) a

b

c

d

e

f

(x) a

b

(xi) a

b No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by the
auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.
The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year/and there were
no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
(ix) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.
On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.
On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.
The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, as defined under the Act.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of maintenance of cost records
specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the company during the year under reference. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues:
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, Service tax, Goods and
Services Tax, employees' state insurance, provident fund, duty of excise, duty of customs and
other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on
account of Sales tax, VAT, cess.

According to information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Duty of excise, Goods and Services Tax, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at reporting date for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable. 

We have not come across any transaction(s) which were previously not recorded in the books of
account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii)
of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x) (a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.
The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore,
reporting under clause (x) (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.



c

(xii) 

(xiii)

(xiv) a

b

(xv) 

(xvi) 

(xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

For, M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.112360W

A.R.Devani
Partner

Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025 Membership No.170644
UDIN : 25170644BMHGCW4151

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of this audit report and that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

c The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

d As informed by the Company, the Group to which the Company belongs has no CIC as part
of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial year.
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under
clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanation provided by the management, The Company has not entered
into transactions with related parties in compliance with provisions of Section 177 & 188 of the Act.
Therefore the provisions of  clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

We have considered the Internal Audit Reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

a & 
b

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable.

As represented by the management, no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year and up to the date of this report.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.



Auditors’ Responsibility

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ASHISH POLYPLAST
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit
involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.



For, M. R. Pandhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.112360W

A.R.Devani
Partner

Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025 Membership No.170644
UDIN : 25170644BMHGCW4151

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on , “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion



(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 
No

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 222.53                   241.14                        
(b) Intangible assets 1                        0.62                             0.86 
(c) Financial assets

i.    Investments 2                    307.41                         207.25 
ii.  Others 3 7.05                       7.05                            

(d) Other Non-current Assets 4 0.97                       0.97                            
Total non-current assets                    538.58                         457.28 
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 134.31                   157.40                        
(b) Financial assets

i. Trade receivables 6 104.40                   125.57                        
ii.Cash and cash equivalents 7 23.00                     75.74                          

(d) Other current assets 8                        6.87                             5.73 
Total current assets                    268.58                         364.44 
Total assets                    807.16                         821.72 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 9 339.75                   339.75                        
(b) Other equity 10 331.99                   308.38                        
Total equity                    671.74                         648.13 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

i.       Borrowings 11 15.00                     23.12                          
(b) Provisions 12 5.24                       5.21                            
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 13 22.06                     19.14                          
Total non-current liabilities                      42.29                           47.47 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

i.       Borrowings 11 8.12                       7.52                            
ii.      Trade payables 14
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

45.53                     25.20                          
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
and small enterprises 4.89                       64.80                          
iii.     Other financial liabilities 15 4.10                       4.41                            

(b) Other current liabilities 16 27.82                     21.37                          
(c) Provisions 17 0.52                       0.69                            
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 2.15                       2.12                            
Total current liabilities                      93.13                         126.12 
Total liabilities                    135.42                         173.59 
Total equity and liabilities                    807.16                         821.72 
Significant accounting polices 1
Notes forming part of Financial Statement 2 to 43
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date -                        -                             
For, M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.112360W

A.R.Devani Ashish D. Panchal Kantaben D. Panchal

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025



(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 
No

 2024-25       
Amount Rs. 

 2023-24       
Amount Rs. 

I. Revenue from operations 19 1,601.44                  1,594.13                  
II. Other Income 20 13.22                       75.58                       
III. Total Income 1,614.66                  1,669.71                  
IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 21 1,379.89                  1,296.41                  
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and Stock-in-Trade 22 (11.07)                      75.33                       
Employee benefit expense 23 60.57                       55.54                       
Financial costs 24 8.95                         11.09                       
Depreciation and amortization expense 1 29.03                       28.39                       
Other expenses 25 109.21                     105.42                     

Total Expenses 1,576.58                  1,572.18                  
V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) 38.08                       97.54                       
VI Exceptional Items - (gain)/loss -                           -                           
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V - VI) 38.08                       97.54                       
VIII Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 26 9.71                         8.67                         
(2) Deferred tax 3.30                         4.53                         
(3) Short/(Excess) Provision of Tax of earlier years 0.29                         0.18                         

IX Profit/(Loss) after Tax for the Period from 
Continuing operations (VII-VIII) 24.78                       84.16                       

X Other Comprehensive Income 27
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (1.55)                        (1.19)                        
(b) Income Tax on above 0.39                         0.30                         
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Fair valuation of Financial Assets -                           -                           
(b) Income Tax on above -                           -                           
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1.16)                        (0.89)                        

XI
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 23.62                       83.27                       

XII Earning per equity share:
(1) Basic 0.73                         2.48                         
(2) Diluted 0.73                         2.48                         

1
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For, M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.112360W

A.R.Devani Ashish D. Panchal Kantaben D. Panchal
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.170644 Din : 00598209 Din : 00598256
UDIN : 25170644BMHGCW4151

Kalpesh N. Kansara Dipti Sharma
CFO Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025 Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

Significant accounting polices
Notes forming part of Financial Statement



Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation and extraordinery items 38.08                             97.54                              
Adjustment for :-
Depreciation 29.03                             28.39                              
Interest Expenses 8.95                               11.09                              
Loss on sale of PPE -                                 1.98                                
Provision for doubtful Advances -                                 1.01                                
Provision for Bad Debts 9.20                               -                                 
Provision for gratuity 1.38                               1.22                                

48.56                             43.68                              
Interest income 0.75                               0.27                                
Profit on sale of PPE -                                 20.68                              
Provision for Bad Debts reversed -                                 0.17                                
Gain on fair value of Financial Instruments 12.16                             54.41                              

12.90                             75.53                              
35.65                             (31.84)                            

Operating Profit berfore working capital changes 73.74                             65.69                              
Change in working Capital :
Adjustment for Decrease( Increase) in operating assets:
Inventories 23.08                             54.26                              
Trade receivables 11.98                             14.43                              
Other Current Assets (1.14)                              (4.06)                              
Other non-current assets -                                 (0.70)                              
Adjustment for (Decrease) Increase in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (39.58)                            39.89                              
Other current liabilities 6.28                               9.22                                
Other Current Financial liabilities (0.32)                              0.89                                
Cash Generated from Operations 74.05                             179.62                            
Direct tax Paid (7.56)                              (6.55)                              
Income Tax (Paid)/Refund (2.25)                              0.26                                
Gratuity Paid (3.08)                              (1.45)                              
Net cash from Operating Activities 61.15                             171.88                            

B. NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Purchase of  Property Plant & Equipment (10.18)                            (20.02)                            
Proceeds from Sale of Property Plant & Equipment -                                 30.22                              
Investment in Mutual Funds (88.00)                            (15.00)                            
Interest Income 0.75                               0.27                                
Net Cash from Investment Activities (97.43)                            (4.53)                              

[Amount in Lakhs]

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st March 2025



C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Expense (8.95)                              (11.09)                            
Proceed /(Repayments) of Long Term Borrowings -                                 -                                 
Proceed /(Repayments) of Long Term Borrowings (7.52)                              (6.96)                              
Proceed /(Repayments) of Short Term Borrowings -                                 (110.00)                          
Net Cash from financial activities (16.47)                            (128.05)                          

  NET INCREASE /(-) DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (52.74)                            39.30                              
  OPENING BALANCE  IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 75.74                             36.45                              
  CLOSING BALANCE  IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23.00                             75.74                              

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of directors
For, M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.112360W

Ashish D. Panchal Kantaben D. Panchal
A.R.Devani Managing Director Director
Partner Din : 00598209 Din : 00598256
Membership No.170644
UDIN : 25170644BMHGCW4151 Kalpesh N. Kansara Dipti Sharma

CFO Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025 Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025

Cash And Cash Equivalents consists of Cash on hand, balances with Bank and Fixed Deposits having maturity
of less than three months (Refer Note No. 7)

Significant accounting polices
Notes forming part of Financial Statement

1
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The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement
of Cash Flows notified under Section 133 of The Companies Act 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended).



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025
(Amount in Lakhs)

 No. of equity 
shares  Amount 

 No. of equity 
shares  Amount 

33,97,500            339.75            33,97,500        339.75                       

-                      -                  -                   -                             

            33,97,500              339.75          33,97,500                         339.75 

(b) Other Equity
General 
reserve

Retained 
Earnings Total

6.77                216.36             223.13                       
-                  84.16               84.16                         
-                  (0.89)                (0.89)                          

1.98                 1.98                           
6.77                301.61             308.38                       
-                  24.78               24.78                         
-                  (1.16)                (1.16)                          

-                  -                   -                             
6.77                325.22             331.99                       

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For, M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.112360W

A.R.Devani Ashish D. Panchal Kantaben D. Panchal
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.170644 Din : 00598209 Din : 00598256
UDIN : 25170644BMHGCW4151

Kalpesh N. Kansara Dipti Sharma
CFO Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025 Ahmedabad, 21st May, 2025

Other Comprehensive Income
Reversal of DTL on actual Financial Instruments 
Sold
Balance as at 31st March, 2025

Other Comprehensive Income
Reversal of DTL on actual Financial Instruments Sold
Balance as at 31st March, 2024
Profit for the year

Profit for the year

Particulars

Balance as at 1st April, 2023

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 

Balance at the end of the
year

(a) Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of
the year
Add: Equity Shares issued
during the year
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1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS
a) Statement of compliance with Ind AS

b) Functional and presentation currency

c) Basis of Measurement

c) Use of Estimates and Judgement
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are known or
materialised.The most material estimates and assumptions are described below:

STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BACKGROUND

Ashish Polyplast Limited (‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company engaged primarily in the
business of Manufacturing of PVC Pipes. The Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE). The Company’s registered office is at 501, Fortune Business Hub, Near Satyamev
Elysium, Near Science City, Sola, Ahmedabad - 380060.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financials.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the Fair Value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
Fair Value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the Fair Value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention basis, except for the
following:

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value.

(ii) Assets held for sale- Measured at the lower of (a) carrying amount and (b) Fair Value less cost
to sell.

(iii) Net defined benefit plans- Plan assets measured at Fair Value less present value of defined
benefit obligation.

(iv) Determining the Fair Value
While measuring the Fair Value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a Fair Value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.



- Leases identification- Whether an agreement contains a lease.
- Classification of lease - Whether Operating or Finance

1.  Impairment test of non-financial assets

2. Allowance for bad debts

3. Recognition and measurement of Provisions and Contingencies

4. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

5. Measurements of Defined benefit obligations

e) Application of New Accounting Pronouncements

The measurements are based on key actuarial assumptions.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as issued from time to time. For
the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has issued a notification on August 12, 2024 issuing a new
Ind AS-117 “Insurance Contracts” for accounting of Insurance contracts by replacing the current
Ind AS 104 “Insurance Contracts”. Additionally, amendments have been made to Ind AS 101, Ind
AS 103, Ind AS 105, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 to align them with Ind AS 117. These
amendments are applicable from August 12, 2024. However, these amendments have no impact on
the company.”

(i) Judgements
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the significant effect
on amounts recognised in the financial statement are as below:

(ii) Assumptions and Estimations
Information about assumption and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment are as below:

For the purpose of assessing recoverability of non-financial assets, assets are grouped at the
lower levels for which there are individually identifiable cash flows (Cash Generating Units).

The Management makes estimates related to the recoverability of receivables, whose book
values are adjusted through an allowance for Expected losses. Management specifically
analyzes accounts receivable, customers ‘creditworthiness, current economic trends and
changes in customer’s collection terms when assessing the adequate allowance for expected
losses, which are estimated over the lifetime of the debts.

The Company’s Management estimates key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude
of an outflow of resources based on available information and the assumptions and methods
deemed appropriate. Wherever required, these estimates are prepared with the assistance of
legal counsel. As and when additional information becomes available to the Company,
estimates are revised and adjusted periodically.

The Management makes estimates as regards to availability of future taxable profits against
which unabsorbed depreciation/ tax losses carried forward can be used.



f) Current and non-current classification

g) Rounding of amounts

1.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Property, Plant and Equipmrnt

(i) Recognition and measurement

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

(iii) Depreciation, Estimated useful life and estimated residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Method, pro rata to the period of use, taking into
account useful lives and residual value of the assets. The Company depreciates its property, plant
and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Act and
management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule II to the
Act. Depreciation is computed with reference to cost or revalued value as per previous GAPP as
the case may be. The assets residual value and useful life are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the statement of Profit and
Loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost (which includes capitalised borrowing costs)
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of
Property, Plant and Equipment comprises:
a) its purchase price, including import duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
depreciated accordingly. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment
is recognised in Statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle (not exceeding twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III
to the Act

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
rupee as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

The Company had applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost
on the transition date i.e. 1st April, 2016 as the deemed cost under Ind AS. Hence regarded
thereafter as historical cost.



b) Intangible Assets

(i) Recognition and measurement

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

(iii) Amortisation

b) Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

a) Classification

b) Measurement

In case of investments
i) In Equity instruments

ii) In Mutual fund

- For subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures - Investments are measured at cost and tested
for impairment periodically. Impairment (if any) is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
- For Other than subsidiaries, associates and Joint venture - Investments are measured at
FVTOCI.

Measured at FVTPL.

Computer soft wares have finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The same are tested for impairment, if any,
at the end of each accounting period.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, when incurred is recognised in statement of profit or
loss.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised
in statement of profit or loss. Computer software are amortised over their estimated useful life or 5
years, whichever is lower. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted, if required.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include
derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate
swaps and currency options.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include
derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate
swaps and currency options.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income-
[FVTOCI], or Fair Value Through Profit and Loss-[FVTPL] and - those measured at
Amortised Cost.[AC]. The classification depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.



iii) In Debt instruments

c) Derecognition of financial assets

d) Impairment of financial assets

(ii) Financial Liabilities

a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at FVTPL and 
- those measured at Amortised Cost (AC)

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Company measures the debts instruments at Amortised Cost. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payment of
principal and interest [SPPI] are measured at amortised cost. Gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of the hedging
relationship, is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the Effective
interest rate method.

A financial asset is derecognised only when:
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from financial asset, or
- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset and has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised.

Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained the control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains the
control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, and bank balance.
b) Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:
- Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
- For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.



b) Initial recognition and measurement

c) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

d) Loans and borrowings

e) Derecognition

f) Offsetting of financial instruments

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. AC is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies
to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL or
AC.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at Fair Value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amount approximate to fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL are designated at the initial
date of recognition, only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated
as FVTPL, Fair Value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized
in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit or loss.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.



g) Derivative financial instruments

c) Inventories

d) Trade Receivable

e) Cash and Cash Equivalent

f) Contributed Equity

I) Dividends

II) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Trade receivable are recognised initially at Fair Value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost (AC) using the effective interest method less provision for impairment. As per Ind AS 109 the
Company has applied ECL for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts. Where Company has
offered extended credit period [ECP] to the debtors, the said amount is recorded at present value,
with corresponding credit in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the extended credit
period.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of the cash flows, cash and cash equivalent
includes the cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions other short term, highly
liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, in the year in which it is approved by
shareholders.

Basic earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders
(adjusted for amounts directly charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by
Weighted average number of Equity shares, (excluding treasury shares).

The Company has not entered into any transactions in derivatives.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for
obsolesce, if any, except for realisable by-products which are measured at net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is determined using the first-in first out (FIFO) method and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories, production or conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their respective present location and condition. In the case of manufactured
inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. The comparison of cost and Net Realisable value is made on
an item by item basis. Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The
net realisable value of work in progress is determined with reference to selling prices of finished
products.



(ii) Diluted earnings per share

g) Borrowing

h) Trade and Other payables

i) Foreign Currency Transactions

j) Revenue Recognition

Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders
(adjusted for amounts directly charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by
Weighted average number of Equity shares (excluding treasury shares) considered for basic
earning per shares including dilutive potential Equity shares.

Borrowings are initially recognised at Fair Value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at AC. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of borrowings using the
effective interest method. Processing/Upfront fee are treated as prepaid asset and netted off from
borrowings. The same is amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. Preference
shares are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, if approved, by
shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, are recognised in profit or loss as
finance costs, in the year when approved. Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid including any non-cash assets transferred or liability
assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit or loss as other gains or (losses). Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the
settlement of liabilities for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Where there is a
breach of a material provision of a long term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the same is classified as current unless the lender agreed, after the reporting period and
before the approval of financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of
the breach.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid at the period end. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their Fair Value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The Company has not entered into any transactions in foreign currency.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.
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3

(i) Sale of goods

(ii) Sale of Services

(iii) Dividend and interest income

(iv) Other Income

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met: 

The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s
performance as the Group performs; or

The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or
The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company
and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised
at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
exists.

Revenue is recognised on the basis of customer contracts and the performance obligation
contained therein. Revenues is recognised at a point in time when the control to the buyer of
goods or services is transferred to a customer.Control lies with the customer if the customer can
independently determine the use of and consume the benefit derived from a product or service
Revenue from product deliveries are recognised at a point in time based on an overall assessment
of the existence of a right to payment, the allocation of ownership rights, the transfer of risks and
rewards, and acceptance by the customer. The goods are often sold with volume discounts/
pricing incentives and customers have a right to return damaged products.
Revenue from sales is based on the price in the sales contracts, net of discounts. Historical
experience, specific contractual terms and future expectations of sales are used to estimate and
provide for damage claims. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with
the normal credit terms as per prevalent trade practice and credit policy followed by the Company
ond normal credit terms. 

Revenue from services is recognised when agreed contractual task has been completed.

a) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.
b) Interest and other income are recognised on accrual basis on time proportion basis and
measured at effective interest rate.



k) Employee Benefits
(i) During Employment benefits
(a) Short term employee benefits

(ii) Post-Employment benefits
(a) Defined contribution plans

(b) Defined benefit plans

(c) Termination Benefits

l) Income Tax

(a) Current Tax

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Company pays fixed
contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards government administered
Provident Fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed
as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have has completed five years of service with
the company at the time when employee leaves the Company. The gratuity is paid as per the
provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the
approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees. The liability in
respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit
Credit Method and spread over the periods during which the benefit is expected to be derived from
employees' services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are
charged to Other Comprehensive Income.
For Leave Encashment Benefits the leave wages are payable to all eligible employees at the rate of
daily salary/wages for each day of accumulated leave and are paid during the financial year itself.
Therefore no liability is accrued at the end of the financial year for leave benefits as per practice
followed by the company year to year.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. In case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the end of reporting period are discounted to the present value.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in statement of profit
and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income
or in equity. In such cases, the tax is also recognised in the other comprehensive income or in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at
the Balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.



(b) Deferred Tax

m) Borrowing Costs

n) Non- Current assets held for sale

o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have enacted or subsequently enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying
amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which they can be used.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable Company.

Non-Current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at lower of their (a.) carrying amount and (b.) Fair Value less
cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised when they are classified as held
for sale.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at the present value
of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pretax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expenses. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past
events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Company or where any present obligation
cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the
obligation cannot be made.

General and specific Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its
intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for
capitalisation.All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
period for which they are incurred.



1 Property, Plant and Equipments & Intengible Assets

(Amount in Lakhs)

 As on  As on  As on  As on  As on 
01.04.2024 31.03.2025  31.03.2025  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

Property, Plant and Equipment
                 2.39                     -                    -                  2.39                     -                     -                    -                       -                      2.39                  2.39 
             123.39                     -                    -              123.39               29.18               4.93                  -                 34.11                  89.28                94.21 
               23.24                     -                    -                23.24                 1.84               0.74                  -                   2.58                  20.67                21.40 
             127.38                 5.75                  -              133.12               80.60               9.63                  -                 90.23                  42.89                46.78 
               25.75                 0.70                  -                26.46                 8.14               2.28                  -                 10.42                  16.04                17.61 
                 3.33                 3.73                  -                  7.06                 2.46               1.06                  -                   3.53                    3.53                  0.87 
               66.97                     -                    -                66.97               13.45               9.08                  -                 22.53                  44.44                53.52 
               13.98                     -                    -                13.98                 9.63               1.07                  -                 10.70                    3.29                  4.35 

Intangble Assets
                 1.20                     -                    -                  1.20                 0.34               0.24                  -                   0.58                    0.62                  0.86 
             387.65               10.18                  -              397.83             145.65             29.03                  -               174.67                223.15               242.00 

*  For properties hypothecated, pledged or equitable mortgaged as a security- Refer Note 11

As on 31st March, 2024

 As on  As on  Provided 
upto 

 As on  As on  As on 

01.04.2023 31.03.2024  31.03.2023  31.03.2024  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 
Property, Plant and Equipment

                 2.39                     -                    -                  2.39                     -                     -                    -                       -                      2.39                  2.39 
             123.39                     -                    -              123.39               24.25               4.93                  -                 29.18                  94.21                99.14 
               27.14                     -                 3.90              23.24                 1.73               0.78               0.68                 1.84                  21.40                25.41 
             122.45                 4.93                  -              127.38               70.68               9.92                  -                 80.60                  46.78                51.77 
               25.59                 0.16                  -                25.75                 5.63               2.51                  -                   8.14                  17.61                19.96 
                 2.88                 0.45                  -                  3.33                 1.96               0.51                  -                   2.46                    0.87                  0.92 
               62.85               14.47             10.35              66.97                 8.09               7.42               2.05               13.45                  53.52                54.76 
               13.98                     -                    -                13.98                 7.56               2.08                  -                   9.63                    4.35                  6.43 

Intangble Assets                     -                      -                       -                       -                          -                        -  
                 1.20                     -                    -                  1.20                 0.10               0.24                  -                   0.34                    0.86                  1.10 
             381.88               20.02             14.25            387.65             119.99             28.39               2.73             145.65                242.00               261.89 

*  For properties hypothecated, pledged or equitable mortgaged as a security- Refer Note 11

Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

As on 31st March, 2025 *

 Deductions 
during the 

year 

 Additions 
during the 

year 

DEPRECIATION FUNDGROSS BLOCK

DEPRECIATION FUND
 Deductions 
during the 

GROSS BLOCK
Particulars  Deductions 

during the 

Loading Vehicles

Total:

 Provided 
during the 

 Provided 
during the 

year 

Loading Vehicles
Vehicles
Computer

Land*

Furniture & Fitting

Total:

Factory Building*
Office Premises
Plant & Machinery*

Vehicles

 Additions 
during the 

Furniture & Fitting

Particulars
 Deductions 
during the 

year 

NET BLOCK

NET BLOCK

Software purchase

Software purchase

 01.04.2024 

Plant & Machinery*

Land*

Computer

Office Premises
Factory Building*



(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 
No
2

A. Details of Non-Current Investment

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

3

4

Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances

5

Notes:
1.  Mode of Valuation:
 Inventories have been valued at Lower of cost or net realisable value.
2. Details of inventory of work in process :

(1.01)                                        

157.40                                      

 As at 31st March 2025 
1.21                                 

 As at 31st March 2024 
5.23                                          

134.31                             

0.97                                          

49.83                                        
5.23                                          

101.99                                      
0.35                                          0.82                                 

0.97                                 

15.21                               
1.21                                 

(1.01)                                

Total

Particulars
Granuals

Inventories
Raw materials  
Work in progress
Finished goods 
Packing Materials ( At Cost)

Total

117.07                             

7.05                                          

0.97                                          

1.01                                          

0.97                                 

1.01                                 

Income Tax Refund Receivable

Other advances

Total 7.05                                 
Security Deposits

7.05                                          
7.05                                 

Other Non-current Assets

DSP India Tiger fund

Nippon India Vision Fund Growth - (SIP)

DSP Equity Opportunities Fund - Growth
DSP Flexi Cap Reg Growth

Tata Business Cycle Fund Regular Plan - Growth 1,79,775.988                                                                       
HDFC Manufacturing fund Regular Growth 3,19,210.599                                                                       

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

 As at 31st March 2024  As at 31st March 2025 

307.41                             
307.41                             

207.25                                      
207.25                                      

Particulars

Non- Current Financial Assets - Investment
Investments designated through FVTPL
Investment in Mutual Fund - Unquoted

Total

Sr. 
No. Name of Scheme

As on 31.03.2025
No. of Unit

Unquoted
4,692.245                                                                            

12,548.392                                                                          
962.115                                                                               

89,104.574                                                                          

Other Non-current Financial Assets

710.000                                                                               

DSP Small cap fund growth plan

HDFC Balance Advantage Fund 8,456.945                                                                            



(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 
No

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

 As at 31st March 2024  As at 31st March 2025 Particulars

6

Refer Note No. 37 for infromation about Credit Risk of trade receivable.

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

Undisputed
Considered good 90.57             10.73           0.82          12.79           2.12            117.03               
Considered doubtful

Disputed
Less : Provision for Expected credit loss (12.64)                
Total 90.57             10.73           0.82          12.79           2.12            104.40               

Undisputed
Considered good 92.29             13.86           20.96        0.02             1.88            129.01               
Considered doubtful

Disputed
Less : Provision for Expected credit loss (3.44)                  
Total 92.29             13.86           20.96        0.02             1.88            125.57               

7

8

1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than 

3 years  Total 

-                                           

75.74                                        

-                                   

23.00                               

0.24                                          0.97                                 

-                                           
125.57                                      

-                                           
3.44                                          

129.01                                      
3.44                                          

125.57                                      

-                                   
104.40                             

-                                   
12.64                               

 More than 
3 years  Total 

75.50                                        

Total 6.87                                 5.73                                          
0.55                                 0.24                                          

Prepaid Expenses 1.68                                 1.46                                          

Other Receivables
Advances with Govt Authorities 3.08                                 -                                           
Advances to suppliers 1.56                                 4.03                                          

Unsecured Considerd Good
Trade receivables-significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables-Credit impaired

Trade receivables
Secured Considerd Good

Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand

117.03                             
12.64                               

104.40                             

Balances with Bank 
(i) In current accounts

Particulars
Less than 6 

months
6 month to 1 

years

Particulars
Less than 6 

months

Less : Provision for expected credit loss

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any
other person nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies in which any director is a
partner, a director or a member.

(ii) In Overdraft / Cash credit accounts 22.03                               

6 month to 1 
years

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

1-2 years

Total

2-3 years

Other current Assets
Unsecured Considered Good



(Amount in Lakhs)

Note 
No Particulars

9 Share Capital
Equity Share Capital :

Authorised :
37,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each

Issued Share capital
35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Subscribed and paid up:

Total

Notes:
I

II

 No. of equity 
shares  Amount 

 No. of equity 
shares  Amount 

Equity shares at the beginning of the year 33,97,500      339.75         33,97,500        339.75    
Add: Equity Shares issued during the year -                 -              -                   -          
Equity shares at the end of the year        33,97,500          339.75          33,97,500      339.75 

III

 Number of 
equity shares 

held 

 Percentage 
holding 

 Number of 
equity shares 

held 

 
Percentage 

holding 
Ashish Dahyabhai Panchal 18,59,323      54.73% 18,59,323        54.73%
Kantaben Dahyabhai Panchal 2,49,891        7.36% 2,49,891          7.36%

IV
Particulars

Name of Promotors  No. of 
equity shares 

held 

 Percentage 
Holding 

% of Change

 No. of 
equity shares 

held 

 Percentage 
Holding % of 

Change
Ashish Dahyabhai Panchal     18,59,323 54.72% -                     18,59,323 54.72% -          
Kantaben Dahyabhai Panchal       2,49,891 7.35% -                       2,49,891 7.35% -          

    21,09,214     21,09,214 

V

Share holding of promotors
 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 

350.00                                  350.00                                
350.00                                350.00                                  

339.75                                  

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

375.00                                  375.00                                

During preceding 5 years, neither any shares have been allotted for consideration other than cash, bonus shares nor
any shares have been bought back. Hence these details have not been given.

The Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding as at the year end is set as below:

Particulars

Name of shareholder

                                 339.75 

339.75                                

33,97,500 Equity shares of 
Rs.10/- each fully paid-up 

                                   339.75 

Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 2/- per share. Each holder of such
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the share holders.

The details of shareholders holding  more than 5% of the equity shares of the Company as at year end are  as below :

 As at 31st March 2024 

 As at 31st March 2025 

 As at 31st March 2025 

 As at 31st March 2024 



(Amount in lakhs)
Note 
No
10

Nature and Purpose of Reserve:

General Reserve

Retained Earnings:

11 Borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Secured Loan
         From Bank
Total

     - Current maturities of long term debt

Notes:

Refer Note No. 37 for infromation about Market Risk of Current Borrowing.

12

308.38                            

5.21                                
5.21                                

Car Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd of Rs. 39.80 lakhs having interest rate at 7.90% is secured against
hypothication of car, repayable in 60 months EMI of RS. 80,140/- each.

5.24                            

Opening balance

5.24                            

301.61                            

Working Capital Demand Loan from bank Secured by hypothecation of inventories, Plant &
Machineries and book debts and further secured by equitable mortgage of Factory Land & Factory
Building and personal guarantee of promoter directors. The rate of interest is RBI policy repo
rate(RPRR)+3.25%(spread).

-                                 
7.52                                

Total
    Provision for gratuity

Loan repayable on demand

General reserve

Reserves and Surplus

Opening balance

Current borrowings

15.00                          
15.00                          

8.12                            
-                              

8.12                            
Working Capital Demand Loan From Bank (Secured)

Closing balance
Total

Add / (Less) : Reversal of DTL on actual Financial 
Instruments Sold -                              

(0.89)                              

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Particulars

Closing balance

Total

Non-current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits :

24.78                          
(1.16)                          

325.22                        
331.99                        

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation
purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is
not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss.

The same is created out of profits over years and shall be utilised as per the provisions of the Act.

7.52                                

6.77                                
6.77                                

1.98                                

 As at 31st March 
2025  As at 31st March 2024 

Retained Earnings

6.77                            
6.77                            

301.61                        216.36                            

23.12                              
23.12                              

Add: Net profit after tax
Add: Other Comprehensive Income

84.16                              



(Amount in lakhs)
Note 
No

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Particulars  As at 31st March 
2025  As at 31st March 2024 

14

Trade payable Ageing schedule

Undisputed
MSME 45.53         -           -          -             45.53        
Other 2.68           2.21         -          -             4.89          

Disputed
MSME 
Other

Total 48.21         2.21         -          -             50.42        

Undisputed
MSME 25.20         -           -          -             25.20        
Other 63.09         1.71         -          -             64.80        

Disputed
MSME 
Other

Total 88.29         1.71         -          -             90.00        

45.53                             

-                                 

-                                 

-                                 

25.20                              
64.80                              
90.00                              

45.53                          
4.89                            

50.42                          

Trade Payable
Trade Payable 

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Total

-                                 

-                                 

-                                 

25.20                                  

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the Section 22 to “Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the intimation received from them on requests made by
the Company are as under:

Particulars
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at 
the end of the year
Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 
the year
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 
16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Particulars
Less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than 

3 years Total

Particulars
Less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than 

3 years 

         - Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
         - Dues to others
Total



(Amount in lakhs)
Note 
No

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Particulars  As at 31st March 
2025  As at 31st March 2024 

15

16

17

18

-                                 
-                                 

-                                 

2.12                                

0.52                            
0.52                            

4.41                                

Other current Financial liabilities
Other Payables 4.10                            4.41                                
Total 4.10                            

15.45                              
5.92                                

21.37                              

21.23                          
6.59                            

27.82                          

2.15                            

0.69                                
0.69                                

2.12                                

-                                 
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accounting year

Other current liabilities

  Provision for Income tax (net of advance tax)

-                                 

Total

Advances from customers
Other current liabilities
Total

Current Provisions
  Provision for employee benefits

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total

2.15                            

-                             

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, 
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure 
under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
Total



13 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Net Balance      
1st April, 

2024

Recognised / 
Reversal 
Retained 
Earning

Recognised 
Profit or Loss

Recognised in 
OCI

 Deferred Tax 
Liability 

 Deferred Tax 
Asset 

Net Deferred 
Tax Liability / 

(Assets)

Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability

Property, Plant and Equipment            18.03                   -                  (1.29) -                16.73              -                  16.73              
Investments - MF             8.37                   -                   1.58 -                9.95                -                  9.95                
Provision            (7.25)                 3.01 (0.39)             -                 (4.63)               (4.63)               
Net Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability 19.14          -               3.30                (0.39)            26.68              (4.63)               22.06              

Particulars Net Balance      
1st April, 

2023

Recognised / 
Reversal 
Retained 
Earning

Recognised 
Profit or Loss

Recognised in 
OCI

 Deferred Tax 
Liability 

 Deferred Tax 
Asset 

Net Deferred 
Tax Liability

Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability

Property, Plant and Equipment            14.60                   -                   3.43 -                18.03              -                  18.03              
Investments - MF             4.44              (1.98)                 5.90 -                8.37                -                  8.37                
Provision            (2.15)                (4.80) (0.30)             (0.30)               (6.96)               (7.25)               
Net Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability 16.89          (1.98)             4.53                (0.30)             26.10              (6.96)               19.14              

Net Balance 31st March, 2024

Net Balance 31st March, 2025



(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 
No Particulars

 2024-25       
Amount Rs. 

 2023-24       
Amount Rs. 

19 Revenue from Operations 
Sale of products 1,623.43                  1,618.68                  
Less:
 Sales Return -                           0.02                         
Trade Discount (TOD) 21.98                       24.49                       
Rate Difference 0.00                         0.04                         

Total 1,601.44                  1,594.13                  

Breakup of Sales
Items
PVC Pipes 1,623.43                  1,618.68                  

Total 1,623.43                  1,618.68                  

20 Other Income
Interest Income 0.75                         0.27                         
Gain on Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments - MF 12.16                       54.41                       
Profit on sale of PPE -                           20.68                       
Other Income 0.32                         0.22                         

Total 13.22                       75.58                       

21 Cost of Material Consumed
Opening stock 49.83                       28.96                       
Purchase 1,345.27                  1,317.27                  
Less : Closing stock 15.21                       49.83                       

Total 1,379.89               1,296.41               

22 Change in Inventories
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 101.99                     105.83                     
Work in Process 5.23                         76.72                       

107.21                     182.55                     
Less : Closing Stock
Finished Goods 117.07                     101.99                     
Work in Process 1.21                         5.23                         

118.28                  107.21                  
Total (11.07)                      75.33                       

23 Employee Benefits Expense
Salary, Wages, Bonus & Allowances 56.35                       51.65                       
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.35                         2.36                         
Provision for Gratuity 1.38                         1.22                         
Staff welfare expenses 0.48                         0.31                         

Total 60.57                       55.54                       
Notes:

24 Finance Costs
Interest on working capital loan 6.03                         7.64                         
Interest on Term Loan 2.10                         2.65                         
Bank Charges / Bank Guarantee Charges 0.81                         0.80                         

Total 8.95                         11.09                       

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2025

Salary, Wages, Bonus & Allowances include director remuneration.



(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 
No Particulars

 2024-25       
Amount Rs. 

 2023-24       
Amount Rs. 

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2025

25 Other Expenses
Manufacturing Expenses 1.84                         2.06                         
Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income 0.21                         0.81                         
Profesional, Legal & Registration fees 1.84                         2.15                         
Power Consumption & Fuel Expenses 57.10                       61.08                       
Listing Fees 3.44                         3.44                         
Repairs to Machinery 6.16                         4.80                         
Repairs to Other 0.56                         0.43                         
Remuneration to Auditors 1.70                         1.60                         
Vehicle Expenses 8.67                         10.29                       
Freight outward Expenses 2.20                         -                          
Administrative, Selling & General Expenses 14.67                       14.22                       
Loss on sale of PPE -                           1.98                         
Insurance 1.63                         1.53                         
Loss on sale of Mutual fund -                           0.02                         
Provision for Doubtful Advances -                           1.01                         
Provision for Bad debts 9.20                         -                          

Total 109.21                     105.42                     
Note :

(i) Payment to Auditors (excluding taxes)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
i) For Statutory Audit Fees 1.00                         0.92                         
ii) For Tax Audit Fees 0.35                         0.34                         
iii)  For Taxation Matters 0.35                         0.35                         
Total Rs: 1.70                         1.60                         



(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 
No Particulars

 2024-25       
Amount Rs. 

 2023-24       
Amount Rs. 

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
Notes forming part of Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2025

26 Tax Expenses
(a) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Income Tax 9.71                         8.67                         
Excess provision of Income Tax in respect of Earlier years 0.29                         0.18                         
Deferred Income Tax Liability / (Asset), net

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3.30                         4.53                         
13.31                       13.38                       

(b) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Profit Before Tax 38.08                       97.54                       
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 9.59                         24.55                       
Non-Deductible Tax Expenses & Others 3.19                         1.49                         
Excess of Book Depreciation over Depreciation as per IT 1.29                         1.28                         
Gratuity Provision (net) (0.43)                        (0.06)                       
Disallowance U/s - 37 -                           0.05                         
Interest on late payment of TDS 0.00                         (0.00)                       
Provision for Expected credit loss 2.31                         (0.04)                       
Provision for Doubtful advances -                           0.25                         
Others -                           0.01                         
Tax on Exempt Income
Gain on Fair Valuation on Mutual Fund (FVTPL) (3.06)                        (13.70)                     
Short Term Capital Gain on MF -                           1.04                         
Loss on sale of PPE -                           (4.71)                       

Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) provision 3.30                         4.53                         
Others 0.29                         0.18                         

Total 13.31                       13.38                       
Effective Tax Rate % 34.94                       13.72                       

27 Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (1.55)                        (1.19)                       
Income Tax on above 0.39                         0.30                         

Total (1.16)                        (0.89)                       



28

29 Figures have been rounded off to nearest of rupee in Lakhs.  Figures in brackets indicate negative values. 

30

A Not provided for in the accounts (Amount in Lakhs)

B Capital Commitment

31  Payments to Directors: (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars
ParticularsSalaries
Allowances

32

33

Particulars

34

Amount (Rs)

Earning per share
10                                        

33,97,500                            
10                                     

The Company has only one segment which is “PVC Pipes” and primarily operates in domestic market. The
Company’s Managing Director, reviews the operating performance of the Company as a whole on a periodic basis.
Therefore disclosure relating to segments is not applicable and accordingly not made.

Earning per share computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 33 as given below:

84,15,579                            

2024-25

0.19                                  

0.73                                  2.48                                     
The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently the basic and dilutive
earning per share of the Company remain the same.

Number of Equity shares/Weighted Equity Shares

2024-25

Nominal value of share

2023-24

2023-24
Net Profit attributable to Share Holders

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments” are given below.

                                      4.53 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided (net of advances) of
Rs. Nil/- (Previous year: as at 31st March, 2024 Rs. Nil lakhs).

Claims not acknowledged as debt

21.00                                

24,77,539                         

Particulars of Earnings Per Share:

21.19                                

Amount (Rs)

Total Rs: 16.20                                   
0.19                                     

16.01                                   

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the Section 22 to “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006” is based on the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company are given
under note no. 14.

33,97,500                         

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED
General Notes forming the parts of Accounts:

2023-242024-25

Corresponding figures for previous year presented have been regrouped, reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to
the current period’s classification.

Particulars

Contingent Liability and Capital Commitments:  

                                       -   



35

A Related Party 
Non-Executive Directors
Kantaben D. Panchal - Director
Rakeshbhai N. Panchal - Director

B Key Management Personnel 
Ashish D. Panchal -
Kalpesh N Kansara - Chief Financial Officer
Aayushi P. Shah - Company Secretary (upto 08.07.2024)
Dipti Sharma - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 18.07.2024)

C Transactions with related parties (Amount in Lakhs)

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
A -                      -                                    26.11              22.94 

-                      -                                      0.19                0.19 

B

a -                      -                                          -                      -   
b -                 -                                  1.45                1.75 

D Material Transactions with related parties (Amount in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Name of Related Party/ 
KMP

1 Ashish D Panchal

2 Kalpesh N Kansara

3 Aayushi P Shah

4 Dipti sharma

36
A Defined Contribution Plan:

B Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefit
General Description:

-    Gratuity (Defined Benefit Plan):

-    Leave Wages:

                                      2.93 

2024-25

                                 21.19 

                                 28.10 

2023-24

                                      4.01 

Managing Director

Related party Disclosure. :- 

Key Management Personnel
NATURE OF TRANSACTIONSSN

RELATED PARTIES

                                   1.80                                           -   

Due From

                                    16.20 

                                    23.14 

Nature of Transaction

Remuneration to Managing 
Director

Remuneration to Company 
Secretary

The company has recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in respect of defined contribution plan

– Provident Fund of Rs. 1,93,684/- (Previous year Rs.1,97,917/-) administered by the Government. The company

has recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in respect of defined contribution plan of Employees

State Insurance of Rs. 41,427/- (Previous year Rs. 38,180/-) administered by the Government.

Due To

Remuneration / Salary Paid
Perquisites 

Remuneration to CFO

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” are given below.

                                   4.21 

                                   0.90 

Total

Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard -19 “ Employee Benefits”:

The leave wages are payable to all eligible employees at the rate of daily salary/wages for each day of
accumulated leave and are paid during the financial year itself. Therefore no liability is accrued at the end of the
financial year for leave benefits as per practice followed by the company year to year.

Remuneration to Company 
Secretary



Details of the gratuity plan (non-funded) as per the report of Actuary as on 31st March 2025 are as under:

A.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv) Change in the fair value of plan asset

(v)

Actuarial losses / (gain)

B.

 Net Asset / (liability) recognized in the Balance 
Sheet

Net asset / (liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present value of funded obligations 

Change in the defined benefit obligation

Fair value of the plan assets

2.93                                  

Nil

-                                    

5.90                                     
Present value of unfunded obligation 5.90                                     

Nil

5.76                                  

1.19                                     

Gratuity(Non-Funded)

Expected return on plan assets

Year ended on 31st 
March 2025

Total amount included in employee's benefit expenses'

Past service cost
Nil

Current service cost

-                                       
Nil

Year ended on 31st March 
2024

Gratuity(Non-Funded)

0.34                                     Interest on obligation

0.88                                     

5.90                                     

1.19                                     Actuarial losses / (gain)

Benefits paid

5.90                                  4.94                                     

Nil

Opening defined benefit obligations

1.55                                  

0.98                                  

-                                       -                                    

Nil

Expected return on Plan Assets 0.00%

(1.45)                                    

 Expenses as above (P & L) charges

Annual Increase in salary costs (p.a.) 3.50%

Nil

Principal actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate (p.a.)  

Amount inLakhs

5.76                                  
Nil

0.98                                  0.88                                     

1.55                                  

(Income)/ Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss 
Account statement:

0.40                                  

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized during the year - 
Recognised in OCI

0.00%

(3.08)                                 

2.41                                     

Nil

Nil Nil

1.19                                     
1.22                                     1.38                                  

Opening net liability 

Asset / (liability) recognized In the Balance Sheet

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

Current service cost 
Interest cost

Current service cost 
(3.08)                                 

5.90                                  

5.76                                  
(1.45)                                    

0.40                                  

Closing defined benefit obligation

Amount in Lakhs

4.94                                     

0.34                                     

Expected return on plan assets
Nil

Contributions by employer

Closing fair value of plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets

Actuarial gains/ (losses) Nil

Benefits paid
Nil

5.76                                  

1.55                                  

3.50%

6.65% 7.20%

Movement in the liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

 Contribution paid 
5.90                                     



C.
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

5.59               5.93         5.74                 6.08          
5.93               5.59         6.08                 5.73          
5.78               5.73         5.96                 5.84          

37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

A Accounting classification and Fair Values

Amount in Lakhs

Fair Value 
through P&L

Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Amortised 
Cost Total Level 1 Level 2

307.41          -                 307.41     307.41             

-                -            104.40             104.40     -                  -            
-                -            -                 23.00       -                  -            

-                -            7.05               7.05         -                  -            
307.41          -            111.45             441.85     

-                -            15.00             15.00       -                  -            
-                -            8.12                 8.12         -                  -            
-                -            50.42             50.42       -                  -            
-                -            73.53               73.53       

Fair ValueCarrying Amount

March 31, 2025

The following table shows the carrying amounts and Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,
including their levels in the Fair Value hierarchy. It does not include Fair Value information for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities not measured at Fair Value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of Fair Value.

Trade Payables

Financial Liability measured 
at amortised Cost :-
Borrowings

Non-current
Total Financial Assets

Salary Growth Rate (0.5% Movement)

Sensitivity Analysis:

Total Financial Liabilities

Discount Rate (0.5% Movement)

Withdrawal Rate (10% Movement)

Current

Non current Financial Assets - 
Others

Financial Assets measured at 
Fair Value :-
Non-current Investments

Trade Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current

Financial Assets measured at 
amortised Cost :-



Amount in Lakhs

Fair Value 
through P&L

Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Amortised 
Cost Total Level 1 Level 2

207.25          -                 207.25     207.25             

-                -            125.57             125.57     -                  -            
-                -            -                 75.74       -                  -            

-                -            7.05               7.05         -                  -            
207.25          -            132.63             415.62     

-                -            23.12             23.12       -                  -            
-                -            7.52                 7.52         -                  -            
-                -            90.00             90.00       -                  -            
-                -            120.64             120.64     

Types of inputs are as under:

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Equity Valuation Based on exchange rates listed on NSE/BSE stock exchange

B Financial Risk Management:-

Non current Financial Assets - 
Others

Non-current
Total Financial Assets

Borrowings
Non-current
Current

Trade Payables
Total Financial Liabilities

Input Level II : (Indirectly Observable) which includes prices in active markets for similar assets such as quoted price
for similar assets in active markets, valuation multiple derived from prices in observed transactions involving similar
businesses etc.

“(1) Fair Value of financial Assets and Liabilities are measured at Amortized cost is not materially different from the
Amortized cost Furthers impact of time value of money is not Significant for the financial instrument classified as
current. Accordingly fair value has not been disclosed seperately. ”

Carrying Amount

Financial Liability measured 

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
▪ Credit Risk ;
▪ Liquidity Risk ; and
▪ Market Risk
         - Interest Rate Risk
         - Equity Risk

Financial Assets measured at 
Fair Value :-
Non-current Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Input Level III : (Unobservable) which includes management's own assumptions for arriving at a fair value such as
projected cash flows used to value a business etc.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the
significant unobservable inputs used.

Input Level I : (Directly Observable) which includes quoted prices in active markets for identical assets such as quoted
price for an Equity Security on Security Exchanges

Fair Value

Trade Receivables

March 31, 2024

Financial Assets measured at 
amortised Cost :-



Risk Management framework

i Credit Risk

Other Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

The maximum exposure to Credit Risk for Trade Receivables by geographic region was as follows:

Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

                               104.40 

                                   1.83                                       1.44 

 Neither Due nor impaired 
 Past Due 1 - 90 Days 
 Past Due 91 - 180 Days 

                                  125.57 

                               104.40                                   125.57 

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Company manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and
exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department
recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved by Board of Directors. The activities of this
department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk
limits and policies.

                                      9.91 

Particulars

Credit Risk also arises from cash held with banks, credit exposure to clients, loans and advances given. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is equel to the carrying value of the financial assets. The company assesses the credit quality of
counter parties taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
                                 90.57                                     96.85 
                                   8.90 

 More than 180 Days                                     20.81 
 Impaired                                  11.95                                           -   

 Total 

The Company’s Risk Management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk Management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s Risk Management policies
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
Company.

                                  129.01 

                                          -                                          -   

31st March, 2025
 Domestic 
 Outside India 

The Company maintains its Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, good
past track record and high quality credit rating and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basis.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk assessment.
Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit
worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Particulars

Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, investments in
debt securities and loans.

31st March, 2024

                               117.03 

                                   3.78 

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on
actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, as per management perceptions, there is no
loss on collection of receivable on reporting date and hence Provision for 10% of Trade Receivable due more than 180
Days and 20% of more than 365 days has been made as Expected Credit loss.

 Total 



ii Liquidity Risk

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

iii Market Risk

a) Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

Cash Flow Sensitivity Analysis For Variable-Rate Instruments

100 bp Increase 100 bp 
Decrease

100 bp Increase 100 bp 
Decrease

-                 -           -                  -            
-                 -           -                  -            

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash Flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s Interest Rate Risk arises from borrowings obligations. Borrowings exposes to fair value interest rate
risk. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of
the Company is as follows:-

Variable Rate Instruments
Contractual Cash Flows

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are
gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Auto loans from Bank 23.12                                30.64                                   

Trade and Other Payables
-                                    

Profit or Loss Equity, Net of Tax

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Working capital loans from Bank

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
Financial Liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

Contractual Cash Flows

-                                    -                                       Working capital loans from Bank

As at 31st March, 2025
As at 31st March, 2024

Non Derivative Financial Liabiliies

Total Rs: 23.12                                30.64                                   

Rupee term loans from Bank

Working capital loans from Bank

30.64                                   23.12                                

Carrying Amount 31st 
March, 2025

Carrying Amount 31st 
March, 2024

-                                       

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as interest rates and equity prices – will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. We are exposed to market risk primarily
related to interest rate risk. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function of borrowing activities. The objective of
market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our borrowing and costs.

50.42                                90.00                                   
Total Rs: 73.53                                120.64                                 

Carrying Amount 31st 
March, 2025

Carrying Amount 31st 
March, 2024



b) Equity Risk

38 Capital Management

Particulars
Total Interest bearing Liabilities
Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents
Adjusted Net Debt
Total Equity
Adjusted Equity
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity

39 Details of Loan given, Investment made and Guarantee given covered u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act.

40 Other Amendments with respect to Schedule III

41

42 Approval of the Financial Statements

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
9. The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

1. The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
company for holding any Benami property.
2. The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.
3. There is no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237of the
Companies Act, 2013.
4. The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
5. The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.
6. The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
7. The company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.
8. The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

The Financial Statements of the Company has been approved in the board meeting held on 21st May, 2025.

671.74                                
671.74                                

0.00                                    

648.13                                

23.12                                  

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

As at 31st March, 2025

0.12                                    

648.13                                

According to the management’s evaluation of events subsequent to the balance sheet date, there were no significant
adjusting events that occurred other than those disclosed / given effect to, in these financial statements as of May 21,
2025.

(0.07)                                   

30.64                                  
23.00                                  

As at 31st March, 2024

Company does not have any investments in equity. Hence Company is not exposed to such risk.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company has not given any loan, has not made any investment or not given any guarantee which covered under
section 186(4) of the Companies Act.

75.74                                  
(45.11)                                 



ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Note 43 - Ratios
No. Particulars Numerator Denominator Basis  As at 31st 

March 
2025 

 As at 31st 
March 
2024 

 % 
Variance 

 Reason for variance 

a) Current Ratio Current 
Assets

Current 
Liabilities

times 2.88        2.89          -0.20%

b) Debt-Equity 
Ratio

Debt Equity times 0.05        0.13          63.94% Decrease in outstanding
borrowing is resulted into an
improvement in the ratio.

c) Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

Earnings 
available 
for Debt 
Service

Debt 
Service

times 4.17       4.58         -9.04%

d) Return on 
Equity Ratio

Net profit 
after tax

Average 
Shareholde
rs' Equity

% 3.58% 13.75% 73.98% Decrease in Net profit has
resulted in deteriorate in the
ratio.

e) Inventory 
Turnover Ratio

Cost of 
Goods Sold

Average 
Inventory

times 9.92        7.39          34.20% Higher efficiency on Working
capital improvement has
resulted in an improvement in
the ratio. 

f) Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover Ratio

Net Sales Average 
Receivable
s

days 26          30            13.75%

g) Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio

Net 
Purchases

Average 
Payables

days 19          19            -1.87%

h) Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio

Net Sales Working 
Capital

times 9.13       6.69         36.46% Higher efficiency on Working
capital improvement has
resulted in an improvement in
the ratio. 

i) Net Profit Ratio Net Income Net Sales % 1.47% 5.22% 71.77% Decrease in Net profit has
resulted in deteriorate in the
ratio.

j) Return on 
Capital 
Employed

Earnings 
before 
Interest & 

Total 
Assets - 
Current 

% 5.33% 14.02% 61.96% Decrease in Earning has
resulted in deteriorate in the
ratio.

k) Return on 
Investment.

% 5% 32% 85.02% Due to unfavourable equity 
market, there is less return for 
the year.

1) Net Debt represents Current Borrowings + Non Current Borrowings -Cash and Cash Equivalents
2) 
3) 

4) 
5) 
6) 

FOR, M. R. PANDHI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.112360W

A.R.Devani
Partner
Membership No.170644
UDIN : 25170644BMHGCW4151

Earnings available for debt service represents Profit Before Tax + Interest on 
Debt Service represents Interest on Debt + Scheduled principal repayment of non-current 
borrowings + Current maturity of debt, if any.
Capital Employed represents Total Equity + Borrowings + Deferred Tax 

Average Invested funds represents Average Investments in MF.
Income generated from invested funds represents Fair value gain / (loss) on investments in MF.

Ashish D. Panchal Kantaben D. Panchal
Managing Director Director
Din : 00598209 Din : 00598256



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

1 Deposits
Non-Current

Total Rs: -                          -                        

2 Advance Income Tax
Income tax Refund FY 14-15 0.26                        0.26                      
Income tax refund A.Y 2014-15 0.58                        0.58                      
Income Tax Refund Receivable 0.13                        0.13                      

Total Rs: 0.97                        0.97                      

3 Long term advances
Other Advances
Shyam Plastic Machinery 1.01                        1.01                      

1.01                        1.01                      
1.01                        1.01                      

4 Deposits
Non-Current
Stock Holding Corp Of India Ltd 0.03                        0.03                      
Utter Gujarat vidhyut co. ltd (security deposits)(UGVCL) 7.03                        7.03                      

Total Rs: 7.05                        7.05                      

5 Investments
Investments in Mutual Fund
DSP Equity Opportunities Fund - Growth 27.23                      23.48                    
DSP Flexi Cap Reg Growth 12.06                      10.62                    
DSP Mutual Fund SIP 151.84                    129.13                  
DSP Tiger Fund (M.F) 2.74                        2.55                      
HDFC Balance Advantage Fund 41.47                      38.18                    
HDFC Manufacturing Fund(M.F.) 31.07                      -                        
TATA Business Cycle Fund(M.F.) 31.41                      -                        
Nippon India Vision Fund Growth - (SIP) 9.59                        3.29                      

Total Rs: 307.41                    207.25                  

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

6 Trade Receivables

A) For More Than Six Months from due date
Arihant Krushi Bhandar: Udaipur 0.28                        0.28                      
Dada & Sons Agency-Vijaywada 0.01                        0.01                      
Doshi Trading Co.-(Ahmedabad) 7.63                        7.63                      
Gandhi Brothers-Nagpur 0.15                        0.15                      
Gujarat Agriculture & Spares-Rewa 0.32                        0.32                      
Handa Agricultural Stores- Satna 0.06                        0.06                      
M.Velmurugan Valves-Tuticorin -                          0.15                      
New Popular Hardware-(Kottayam) -                          0.23                      
ParamountIndustrialEnterprisesSecundraba 0.20                        0.20                      
Parekh Brothers, Calcutta 0.03                        0.03                      
P.K.Traders; Udaipur 0.02                        0.02                      
Raj Gas Industries & Appliences-Jammu 0.45                        0.45                      
Riaa Marketing-(Brahmapur) 0.40                        0.45                      
ShreeRaghvendraMiningEqp.&Sparres;Chimma 0.41                        0.41                      
S.S.Corporation;A'bad 4.31                        4.31                      
United Mining Tools-Ballari 0.32                        0.32                      
VishnuHardware&Machinery Stores-(Ujjain 0.15                        0.15                      

Total Rs A. 14.75                      15.18                    

B) OTHERS
A TO Z Brass  World-Madurai 0.53                        0.30                      
A.S. TRADERS -                          -                        
Ajay Trading Co.( Jalandhar) 0.25                        0.70                      
All India Hoses & Polymers-(Chennai) 9.61                        7.99                      
Amar Enterprises - Calicut 0.93                        0.18                      
American Auto Stores;Trivendrum 0.94                        1.23                      
Anand Machinery Mart;Bhim -                          -                        
Anantha Trading-mangadu 3.76                        2.98                      
Ashok Distributors, Rajkot. 0.57                        -                        
Anajneye traders-Ongole 0.31                        -                        

-                          -                        
Asisn Hydraulics 0.19                        
B.P.Product-Bhilwara 3.02                        -                        
Balaji Pipe Traders-Vijaywada 0.03                        -                        
Belu Ram Kamal Kumar-Hissar 0.01                        0.01                      
Best Hydraulics-Trichy 0.49                        
Bhandari Krishi Bhandar, Salumber 0.02                        0.02                      
Bharath Trading Co.: Trichy 0.45                        0.32                      
Bothra Sales Corporation(Vishakhapatnam) 0.01                        0.01                      
Burhani Asbestos&Rubber Udhyog(Chennai) 16.98                      22.59                    
Burhani Hardware And Fittings-Chennai 0.14                        -                        
Burhani hardware - Ranigunj 0.27                        -                        
Burhani Hardwares-Secundrabad -                          1.10                      
C L Shah & Co.,Calcutta -                          1.60                      



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Divyajyot Pipe Stores-(Mumbai) -                          12.86                    
Enp Techno Engineers (Sales)-Odhav,Ahmed -                          0.04                      
Evershine Enterprises-Coimbatore 1.97                        2.12                      
Eversine Eng Co. -(Coimbatore) 1.23                        0.63                      
Fakhri Fittings - Coimbatore 2.51                        2.11                      
Flexaflex Hoses Industries-(Coimbatore) 4.25                        6.52                      
Flexaflex Hoses International-Ahmedabad -                          0.40                      
Ganpati Enterprise-(Baddi) 1.45                        -                        
Gaurav Trans Engineers Pvt.Ltd.: A'Bad 4.64                        3.80                      
Goodwill Hydraulics - Secunderabad -                          0.28                      
Gupta Mill Stores 0.27                        0.27                      
Hansraj & Co.-(Bangalore) 0.18                        1.97                      
Hindustan Hydraulics & Pneumatics -                          0.47                      
Hindustan Hardware-Ambattur 1.15                        -                        
Infant Traders- Tuticorin 0.42                        -                        
India Machinery Stores-Kota 0.52                        -                        
Indus Trade Links;Ernakulam 1.72                        3.13                      
Industrial Collection : Akola 0.15                        0.16                      
K.V.Ratnam & Co.-Kakinada 0.01                        0.95                      
Kanta Enterprises;Indore 0.32                        -                        
Lalit Ind Agencies, Rajkot -                          1.90                      
MabRook Industrial Enterprises 0.35                        0.66                      
Mahendrabhai U Patel - Gandhinagar 0.02                        0.02                      
Maheshwari Agro Pumps & Pipes- Bhilwara 1.22                        -                        
Manium Hardware & Steel Pvt Ltd 0.83                        -                        
Markaz Pneumatics & Hydraulics -                          0.36                      
Mohindeen Traders;Madurai 0.01                        0.04                      
Motorev AutoMotive (Opc) Pvt Ltd -Jajpur 1.96                        -                        
Mohsin Brothers, Visakhapatnam 0.17                        -                        
MM Marketing 0.18                        -                        
National Hardware & Agencies-(Ernakulum) 2.35                        1.20                      
Neer Flexoplast India - Ahmedabad 9.22                        14.96                    
Nellai Traders - Tirunelveli -                          0.06                      



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

New Babji Pneumatics-Coimbatore 2.55                        2.32                      
New Bearing Centre-(Cuttack) 0.48                        0.55                      
New Pipe Agencies;(Coimbatore) -                          0.32                      
New Vijay Lakshmi Light House 0.23                        0.17                      
NewageFireProtectionIndustriesP.Ltd.Hond 0.01                        0.01                      
Nityanand Engineering Corporation-Aurang 0.01                        0.01                      
Orient Hardware Stores - Hyderabad 0.18                        -                        
Preet International 0.50                        0.79                      
Preetee Sales Corporation -  A'bad 0.52                        -                        
Quality Machines & spares-Ernakulam 0.68                        -                        
Rajasthan Machinery Stores:(Pali) 1.20                        1.70                      
Rajeshwari Eng Tools - Madurai -                          0.00                      
Rifle Tubes, A'bad -                          0.07                      
Rikon Sales Corporation, A'bad -                          1.15                      
Rikon Traders, A'bad 2.89                        -                        
Robbin Hardware Stores-Belgaum 0.17                        0.17                      
Royal Hardware & Stationery-Ernakulam -                          0.78                      
S S Enterprise, A'bad 4.22                        4.24                      
S.J.Traders-(Secundrabad) -                          -                        
S.S.Trading : (Cauttak) 1.58                        2.20                      
S.Vinod & Com-Pune 0.10                        -                        
Safe Hydraulics And Pneumatics 0.73                        -                        
Saif Hardware Stores 0.11                        0.41                      
Saif Tools And Machinery Stores - Erode 0.18                        0.01                      
Sankareshwari Rubbers - Madurai 0.23                        -                        
Saraf Trading Co.-Katni 0.04                        0.04                      
Sheetal Polymer Hub 0.00                        0.00                      
Shree Amman Traders-Trivandrum 0.16                        0.16                      
Shree Balaji Machinery Mart - Bhim 0.43                        0.20                      
Shree Bhagwati Trading Co.:Udaipur 0.19                        0.90                      
Shree Jain Mill Store ;Kanpur 0.28                        1.47                      
Shree Nath Hydraulics - Chittorgarh 0.16                        -                        
Sind Rubber;S;(Ludhiana) 2.71                        1.55                      
Smart Machine Tools-(Hospet) 0.15                        0.41                      
South India Trading Company 0.09                        0.07                      
Super Machine Tools-(Raipur) 0.72                        -                        
Sonal Enterprises 0.22                        -                        
Technology Plastomech Pvt.Ltd.-Ode 0.00                        0.00                      
Union Power Tools 0.00                        -                        
V.V. Hitech Innovations India Pvt Ltd 2.82                        0.21                      
V.N.Mehta & Co.;Secundrabad 0.53                        -                        
V.M.Patel & Co.-Dhule 0.74                        -                        
VermaAgricultureAndIndustrialCorp-Ajmer 0.27                        -                        
Y.S.K Trading-(Salem) 0.63                        -                        

Total Rs:B 102.29                    113.84                  
Total  Rs.[A+B] 117.03486              129.01                  



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

7 Balances with Bank 
(ii) Kotak bank CC                        22.03                      75.50 

22.03                      75.50                    

8 Prepaid expenses
Prepaid Insurance Expenses 1.68                        1.46                      

Total Rs: 1.68                        1.46                      

1 Advances with Govt Authorities
CGST Receivable 1.54                        -                        
SGST Receivable 1.54                        -                        

Total Rs: 3.08                        -                        

9 Other receivables
Interest Receivable On GEB Deposit                          0.55                        0.24 

Total Rs: 0.55                        0.24                      
10 Long-term borrowings

Secured Loan
HDFC Bank Ltd.                        15.00                      23.12 
(Agaist the hypothication of Citron Car)

Total Rs:                        15.00                      23.12 

11 Trade Payable
[A] For Goods
         A.K.syntetics 4.36                        6.17                      
         Ami Sales Corporation                          1.03                        1.03 
         Chanand traders                          3.38                        7.25 
         Chem Plast                          0.14                        6.66 
         Crown Packaging                          0.93                        0.81 
         Connell Bros.Co.(I) Pvt.Ltd                          0.38                            -   
         Kohinoor Print And H/W Mart                          0.05                        0.04 
         Mahalaxmi Corporation                          3.08                        3.25 
         Meet Marketing (I) Pvt. Ltd.                        19.80                      13.92 
         Nagda Chemicals                          0.10                        0.10 
         Nishan Multi-Trade Pvt.Ltd.                          3.68                        0.32 
         Prakash Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.                          4.28                        0.98 
         Prakash Plastic Packging                          1.31                            -   
         Shree Ambica Acid Chemicals                              -                          0.06 

Dot Technology                              -                          0.51 
Fino Solvio Chem Llp                          1.37                      33.26 
Gaurav Trans Engineers Pvt.Ltd. (Pur.)                          0.01                        0.04 
GAYATRI MARKETING                              -                          1.45 
Hindprakash Chemicals Private Limited                              -                          4.44 
Kalpataru Chemicals                          0.01                        0.28 
Kataria Cargo Movers                              -                          0.05 
KLJ Petroplast Ltd.                              -                          5.52 
Markem-Imaje India Pvt.Ltd.                              -                          0.00 
Trade India                          2.82                            -                                -                              -   

Total [A]: 46.72                      86.12                    



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

[B] For Expenses
         Akshar Electrotech Services                              -                          0.01 
         Ambica Traders                              -                          0.38 
         Aadikesh Industries                          0.18                            -   
         Arbuda Roadline                          0.13                            -   
         Bhagwati Courier                          0.09                        0.04 
         Cheq Computer Care                          0.01                        0.01 
         D. M. Parmar                          0.04                            -   
         Deepankit Trading Co                          0.16                        0.11 
         M R Pandhi & Associates                          1.37                        1.44 
         MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd.                          0.03                            -   
         Morden Industries Corporation (Pur)                              -                          0.00 

Simandhar Electrical                          0.03                            -   
         Servotronics                          0.16                            -   
         Sri Flexi Pack                          0.41                        0.47 
         Sunheat Electricals                          0.89                        0.71 

Bhakti Metal Industries                          0.01                        0.14 
ENP Techno Engineers                              -                          0.05 
Karnavati Wheels Pvt Ltd.                              -                          0.07 
Link Intime India Pvt.Ltd.                              -                          0.03 
Parth P Shah                          0.08                        0.31 
ShrI Harikrupa Engineering                          0.09                        0.09 
Shubhlaxmi Trading Co                              -                          0.00 
Tradelink                          0.01                        0.01 

Total [B] :                          3.69                        3.88 



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Less : Advance to Creditors
Honest Kisan Seva Kendra                          0.20                            -   
Anupam Enterprise 0.06                        0.06                      
ALEP Management LLP 0.04                        -                        
Jay D Shah -                          0.04                      
M.R.Engineers -                          1.18                      
Overseas Polymers Pvt Ltd -                          0.00                      
Opal Infotech 0.25                        -                        
PCL Oil & Solvents Ltd 1.00                        1.00                      
Pon Pure Chemical India Pvt. Ltd. -                          0.00                      
P.P ENGINEERING WORKS 0.01                        -                        
S.A.Airconditioning -                          0.01                      
Shivshakti Enterprise -                          1.03                      
Torarch Architects -                          0.70                      
Trade India -                          0.00                      

Total [C] :                          1.56                        4.03 
Total [A+B-C] 48.85387                85.97                    

12 Current Maturities Of  Long Term Debt
HDFC Bank Ltd (Car) 8.12                        7.52                      

Total Rs: 8.12                        7.52                      

13 Other Current Financial Liabilities
Ashish D Panchal (Unpaid Director Remuneration)                          1.45                        1.75 
Unpaid Salary Expenses 2.62                        2.64                      
Unpaid Credit Card Expenses (0.00)                       -                        
Unpaid Telephone Exp 0.03                        0.02                      

Total Rs: 4.10                        4.41                      

13 Other Current Assets
Advances from customers
Ashok Distributors, Rajkot. -                          0.20                      
Aquatix India-Cuttack 0.32                        -                        
Balkrishna Enterprise; Rajkot 0.08                        0.17                      
Bansal Suppliers:Kheterinagar 0.01                        0.01                      
Dhanlakshmi Enterprises;Chimmakurty 0.24                        0.24                      
Divyajyot pipe Stores-Mumbai 4.81                        -                        
Dipali Electricals-Narayangaon 0.10                        0.10                      
Eastern Ind Cor. (I), (Rourkela) 0.04                        0.04                      
Exact Pipes And Moulds Pvt Ltd.-Noida 0.00                        0.00                      
Fitting World- Chennai 0.07                        
Gagan Mill Stores-Haryana 0.01                        0.01                      
Gaurav Trans Engineers Pvt.Ltd.: A'Bad -                          -                        
Jagdish Plastic.A'bad 0.01                        0.01                      
Jagdish Polymers, A'bad 0.52                        0.49                      
Kapil Mill Stores-Panipat 0.01                        0.01                      
Lakhani Dyestuffs Pvt.Ltd. 0.15                        0.15                      
Lalit Ind Agencies - Rajkot 0.90                        
Modern Ind Corporation, A'bad 9.71                        9.51                      
Modi Trading Corporation;Banglore 0.10                        0.10                      



Sub 
Note No. Particulars

 As at 31st March 
2025                            

 As at 31st March 
2024                

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

New Pipe Agencies;(Coimbatore) 0.01                        -                        
Orient Traders;Delhi 0.02                        0.02                      
Patanwala Associates-Chennai 0.01                        0.01                      
Pooja Marketing-Ahmedabad 0.73                        1.66                      
Popular Enterprises-Jabalpur -                          0.07                      
Preeti Sales Corporation, A'bad -                          0.49                      
Rikon Traders, A'bad -                          1.72                      
Rikon Sales Corporation, A'bad 1.74                        -                        
Rifle Tubes, A'bad 0.71                        -                        
Royal Hardware & Stationery-Ernakulam 0.00                        -                        
Sanwariya Traders 0.28                        0.02                      
Shreeji Traders, Rajkot 0.39                        0.19                      
Sri M N Krishna Enterprises 0.06                        0.06                      
TCL-MMPL Consortium; Jhunjhnu 0.00                        0.00                      
The Nellai Traders-Vasudevanallur 0.02                        0.02                      
Tiger Rubber Co.-Delhi 0.02                        0.02                      
Trupti Industrial Hardware:Jalgaon 0.10                        0.10                      
V.N.Mehta & Co.;Secundrabad -                          0.03                      
V.S.Electric Co.-Gurgaon 0.01                        0.01                      
Vijay Electricals & Engg.Co.-Amravati 0.00                        0.00                      
Vincio Modular Llp - Pune 0.04                        -                        
Vinod Industrial Corporation-Gorakhpur 0.02                        0.02                      

Total Rs: 21.23                      15.45                    
14 Other Payables

Other Current Liabilities
Unpaid IGST 5.46                        4.85                      
Unpaid CGST 0.00                        0.10                      
Unpaid SGST 0.00                        0.10                      
Unpaid ESIC 0.04                        0.06                      
Unpaid Professional Tax 0.04                        0.03                      
Unpaid PF 0.35                        0.39                      
Unpaid TDS 0.58                        0.27                      
Unpaid TCS 0.10                        0.11                      

Total Rs: 6.59                        5.92                      
15 Short term provision

Provision for taxation
Income tax provision 9.71                        8.67                      
Less:
Advance Income Tax 7.50                        6.50                      
TCS Receivable 24-25 0.04                        -                        
TDS Receivable 24-25 0.02                        0.05                      

Total Rs: 2.15                        2.12                      
16 Long term provision

Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity 5.24                        5.21                      

Total Rs: 5.24                        5.21                      



(Amount in Lakhs)
Sub Note 

No Particulars  2024-25       
Amount Rs. 

 2023-24       
Amount Rs. 

1 Revenue from - Sale of products
Inter State Sales 626.50                  616.12                   
Intra State Sales 996.92                  1,002.56                

1,623.43               1,618.68                
Total Rs.: 1,623.43               1,618.68                

2 Interest Income
Interest Income - UGVCL 0.75                      0.27                       
Interest on IT Refund -                        0.00                       

Total Rs.: 0.75                      0.27                       
3 Other Income

Vatav-Kasar 0.31                      0.05                       
Provision for bad debts reversed -                        0.17                       
Rounded Off 0.00                      0.00                       

Total Rs.: 0.32                      0.22                       
4 Purchase Accounts

Purchase Inter State 29.98                    42.45                     
Purchase Intra State 1,324.00               1,281.41                
Purchase A/c (Freight) 3.32                      5.68                       

Total Rs.: 1,357.30               1,329.54                
Less:
 Quantity/Trade discount received 11.53                    12.27                     
  Rate Difference -                        (0.00)                     
  Purchase Goods Returned 0.50                      -                        

Total Rs.: 1,345.27               1,317.27                
5 Salary,Wages, Bonus &  Allowances

Salary, Wages & Bonus Expenses 33.96                    34.08                     
Leave Salary 1.39                      1.57                       
Directors' Remmuneration & Allowances 21.00                    16.01                     

Total : 56.35                    51.65                     
6 Interest on working capital loans

Interest on Bank Loan 6.03                      7.64                       
Total : 6.03                      7.64                       

7 Other borrowing costs
Bank comm. & Processing Charges 0.80                      0.77                       
Interest on Late Payment of TDS 0.01                      (0.00)                     
Interest Exp (Other) -                        0.03                       
Other bank charges 0.00                      0.00                       

Total : 0.81                      0.80                       

Sub Notes forming part of Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2025

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED



8 Manufacturing expenses
Packing Material Consumption
Opening Stock 0.35                      0.15                       
Purchases 2.31                      2.27                       

2.67                      2.42                       
Closing Stock 0.82                      0.35                       
Packing Material Consumed 1.84                      2.06                       

Factory Expense -                        -                        
Total Rs. : 1.84                      2.06                       

9 Rates & Taxes
Zak Gam Panchayat Tax -                        0.25                       
Municipal Tax 0.21                      0.56                       

Total Rs. : 0.21                      0.81                       

10 Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Airconditioner Repairing 0.07                      0.01                       
Office Maintenance Expenses 0.49                      0.42                       

Total : 0.56                      0.43                       
11 Administrative, Selling & General Expenses

Advertisement & Publication Expense 0.39                      0.51                       
Admin Charges - PF 0.08                      -                        
Computer Expenses 0.57                      0.41                       
Consulting Charges 0.50                      0.10                       
Demat Registrastion Fee Exp -                        0.02                       
Digital Signature Certificate 0.04                      0.05                       
Office Electricity Exps -                        0.35                       
Electrical Expenses 1.60                      2.51                       
E-voting Charges 0.16                      0.26                       
GST Charges 0.25                      -                        
NSDL Film Fees 0.10                      0.10                       
ISO Charges 0.05                      0.05                       
Internet Expense 0.10                      0.10                       
Late Filing Fees 0.03                      -                        
Membership Fees 0.38                      0.23                       
Misc Expense 0.04                      0.01                       
Office Expenses 0.02                      0.04                       
Pollution Expenses 0.01                      -                        
Penalty Expense 2.07                      0.20                       
Postage & Telegram Expenses 0.54                      0.72                       
ROC Filling Expenses -                        0.22                       
Service Charge Expense 0.10                      0.05                       
Stationery & Printing Expenses 3.49                      3.34                       
Telephone Expenses 0.33                      0.29                       
Testing Charges Exps. 0.06                      0.01                       
Travelling Expense 2.24                      3.35                       
Vehicle Insurance 1.22                      0.98                       
Website Expenses 0.31                      0.31                       

Total Rs. : 14.67                    14.22                     



(Amount in Lakhs) 

SR. ASSETS % Cost Additions deductions Total Provided Provided Deductions Total Total Total
NO. As on during during As on Upto during during As on As on As on

 01.04.2024 the year the year 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 the year the year 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Property, Plant and Equipments

1 Land -        2.39            -                -              2.39            -                 -               -           -               2.39             2.39             

2 Factory Building 3.17% 123.39        -                -              123.39        29.18             4.93             -           34.11           89.28           94.21           

3 Office Premises 1.58% 23.24          -                -              23.24          1.84               0.74             -           2.58             20.67           21.40           -               
4 Plant & Machinery 6.33% 127.38        5.75              -              133.12        80.60             9.63             -           90.23           42.89           46.78           -               
5 Furniture & Fitting 9.50% 25.75          0.70              -              26.46          8.14               2.28             -           10.42           16.04           17.61           -               -               
6 Computer 31.67% 3.33            3.73              -              7.06            2.46               1.06             -           3.53             3.53             0.87             -               -               
7 Vehicles 11.88% 66.97          -                -              66.97          13.45             9.08             -           22.53           44.44           53.52           -               -               
8 Loading Vehicles 11.88% 13.98          -                -              13.98          9.63               1.07             -           10.70           3.29             4.35             

Intangible Assets
9 Software Purchase 20.00% 1.20            -                -              1.20            0.34               0.24             -           0.58             0.62             0.86             

Total Rs : 387.65        10.18            -              397.83        145.65           29.03           -           174.67         223.15         242.00         

ASHISH POLYPLAST LIMITED

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION FUND NET BLOCK

SCHEDULE - D # FIXED ASSETS
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